












Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2013/14Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD   

1100 1,387,062.00 1,399,221.00 136,360.57 1,261,249.99 1,610.44 Teachers Salaries

1120 41,028.00 44,190.00 30,630.00 13,560.00 Certificated Substitutes

1300 232,629.00 238,706.00 20,812.08 222,522.14 4,628.22-Certificated Superv/Admin Sala

1310 16,000.00 16,000.00 1,000.00 13,000.00 2,000.00 Teacher In Charge/Head Teacher

1900 13,323.00 10,633.00 827.15 10,054.84 248.99-Other Certificated Salaries

Total for Object 1000 1,690,042.00 1,708,750.00 158,999.80 1,537,456.97 12,293.23 

2100 164,218.00 127,148.00 18,787.68 112,262.49 3,902.17-Instructional Aides Salaries

2200 224,875.00 255,930.00 20,625.69 227,324.60 7,979.71 Classified Support Salaries

2220 13,810.00 13,666.00 14,021.72 355.72-Classified Support Substitute

2300 2,160.00 3,150.00 1,395.00 1,755.00 Classified Sup/Admin Salaries

2400 231,727.00 241,984.00 25,323.30 214,298.08 2,362.62 Clerical & Office Salaries

2900 22,884.00 22,850.00 3,658.90 19,644.09 452.99-Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 659,674.00 664,728.00 68,395.57 588,945.98 7,386.45 

3101 133,345.00 130,066.00 12,547.60 119,803.87 2,285.47-State Teachers Retirement Syst

3102 825.00 184.00 136.15 47.85 State Teachers Retirement Syst

3201 6,248.00 6,025.00 573.74 5,712.84 261.58-Public Employees Retirement Sy

3202 68,286.00 62,069.00 5,499.76 56,567.47 1.77 Public Employees Retirement Sy

3212 9,156.00 8,483.00 704.06 7,550.40 228.54 Pers Pickup-Classified Employe

3311 3,240.00 3,514.00 289.90 3,517.44 293.34-OASDI-Certificated Positions

3312 39,565.00 39,967.00 4,174.33 35,659.23 133.44 OASDI-Classified Positions

3321 24,434.00 22,220.00 2,125.42 20,677.22 582.64-Medicare-Certificated Position

3322 9,416.00 9,400.00 976.24 8,383.80 39.96 Medicare-Classified Positions

3401 406,791.00 381,637.00 37,713.95 343,923.69 .64-Health & Welfare -Certificated

3402 148,031.00 159,044.00 13,462.12 145,078.06 503.82 Health & Welfare-Classified Po

3501 906.00 834.00 79.54 1,695.00 940.54-State Unemployment Insurance-C

3502 328.00 330.00 34.19 1,829.75 1,533.94-State Unemployement Insurance-

3601 99,121.00 90,688.00 8,684.24 84,135.18 2,131.42-Workers' Compensation Insuranc

3602 36,748.00 36,702.00 3,810.75 32,725.95 165.30 Workers' Compensation Insuranc

3701 121,500.00 .00 Retiree Benefits Cert.

3901 419.00 116,888.00 44.32 13,357.30 103,486.38 Other Benefits, Certificated P

3902 2,174.37 25,149.55 27,323.92-Other Benefits, Classified Pos

Total for Object 3000 1,108,359.00 1,068,051.00 92,894.53 905,902.90 69,253.57 

4100 13,579.00 106,024.00 44,272.02 61,751.98 Textbooks

4200 614.19 2,630.96 3,245.15-Books Other Than Textbooks

4300 93,128.00 122,614.00 16,689.26 100,038.97 5,885.77 Materials and Supplies

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2014, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  3 2014  2:56PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3212
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3321
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3322
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2013/14Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD    (continued)

4350 9,766.00 9,766.00 3,240.29 2,732.56 3,793.15 Vehicle Maint. M&S

4400 13,360.00 2,852.33 9,256.27 1,251.40 Non-Capital Equipment (Up to $

Total for Object 4000 116,473.00 251,764.00 23,396.07 158,930.78 69,437.15 

5100 601,532.00 601,532.00 21,458.28 580,002.88 70.84 Subagreement for Services

5200 42,563.00 53,972.00 11,673.99 27,422.81 14,875.20 Travel & Conferences

5300 5,447.00 8,828.00 171.55 8,511.59 144.86 Dues & Membership

5400 52,000.00 52,000.00 47,105.88 4,894.12 Insurance-Fire, liability, etc

5510 84,845.00 80,088.00 19,810.22 63,847.93 3,570.15-Power

5520 13,563.00 12,813.00 1,376.28 5,534.71 5,902.01 Garbage

5530 52,850.00 52,850.00 9,709.54 51,779.45 8,638.99-Water

5540 67,375.00 66,500.00 5,004.86 47,442.72 14,052.42 Propane

5590 15,500.00 15,500.00 3,195.35 11,804.65 500.00 Miscellaneous Utilities

5600 28,650.00 33,300.00 2,754.68 30,100.45 444.87 Rentals, Leases & Repairs

5800 5,000.00 5,000.00 450.00 1,370.00 3,180.00 Services & Operating Expense

5810 10,000.00 10,000.00 104.00 629.75 9,266.25 Legal Expenses

5812 1,239.00 1,239.00 1,239.00 Board Election Expense

5840 13,500.00 13,500.00 13,500.00 .00 Audit Expense

5860 14,561.00 13,761.00 1,048.96 7,314.61 5,397.43 Solid Waste Tax

5870 328.00 .00 Property Tax - Plioicene Mobil

5890 404,476.00 347,217.00 79,000.37 289,326.31 21,109.68-Miscellaneous Contracts/Servic

5899 4,776.03 6,246.96 11,022.99-SCOE Interagency Reimburse

5900 3,250.00 3,250.00 3,239.80 10.20 Communications

5910 16,991.00 16,502.00 5,875.58 4,197.39 6,429.03 Telephone-Monthly Service

5920 4,800.00 4,800.00 221.77- 5,021.77 T Lines

5990 225.00 225.00 213.23 11.77 Other Communications

Total for Object 5000 1,438,695.00 1,392,877.00 166,409.69 1,199,369.35 27,097.96 

6200 100,000.00 130,450.00 38,753.02 91,696.98 BUILDING & IMPROVEMENT OF BUIL

6400 21,000.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 Equipment

6500 25,200.00 11,009.69 14,190.31 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 121,000.00 176,650.00 .00 49,762.71 126,887.29 

7142 27,125.00 .00 Other Tuition, Excess Cost, an

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

7613 376,834.00 .00 Transfer to State Sch Bldg Fun

7616 76,474.00 82,273.00 45,980.84 36,292.16 Trans fr Gen Fund to Cafeteria

7619 87,600.00 87,600.00 .00 Other Interfund Transfers Out

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2014, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  3 2014  2:56PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5510
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5520
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5530
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5540
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5590
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5812
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5840
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5860
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5870
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5890
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5910
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5920
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5990
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7142
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7613
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7616
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68446&p2=6&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7619


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2013/14Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - General FD    (continued)

Total for Object 7000 480,433.00 169,873.00 .00 133,580.84 36,292.16 

5,614,676.00 5,432,693.00 510,095.66 4,573,949.53 348,647.81 Total for Expense accounts

348,647.81 5,614,676.00 5,432,693.00 510,095.66 4,573,949.53 Total for Org 006, Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 6, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2014, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  3 2014  2:56PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH

2013-2014

Loyalton Loyalton Loyalton Downieville Downieville Sierra Long Term

Elementary Jr High Sr High Elementary Jr/Sr High Pass Cont ISP TOTAL

Ending 2012-2013 162 45 109 30 26 8 12 392

1st Day 2013-2014 171 43 102 30 21 8 11 386

2013 CALPADS 172 counted w/LHS 146 29 21 9 16 393

Month

September 1 167 44 95 29 21 9 14 379

October 2 167 44 92 29 21 9 14 376

November 3 169 43 92 31 21 8 14 378

December 4 166 43 89 31 21 8 15 373

January 5 165 43 90 32 21 10 12 373

February 6 164 40 91 33 21 11 12 372

March 7 166 40 91 32 21 11 14 375

April 8 172 39 91 32 21 11 17 383

May 9 171 40 91 32 21 11 17 383

June 10 178 42 98 32 21 11 included in site # 382

2013-2014 S-PJUSD SDC Washoe Cnty

P-1 ADA 351.97 0 13.23

P-2 ADA 351.05 0 13.34

Annual ADA

 

doc/Attendance 2013-14/Board Summary 2013-2014

2012-2013 P1 ADA = 361.62 
2012-2013 P2 ADA=  363.89 
2012 -2013 Annual ADA = 365.21 

Long Term ISP Enrollment Month 9:  LES-8; LHS-9 
Long Term ISP Enrollment Month 10: LES-7; LHS-10 

Prepared by sroberts 6/11/2014 Page 1



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

May 13, 2014
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118

A.  CALL TO ORDER

President Mike Moore called the meeting to order at 5:04 pm.

B.  ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Mr.  Mike Moore, President
Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Vice President
Ms.  Sharon Dryden, Clerk
Ms.  Patty Hall, Member - Arrived at 5:21 pm.
Mr.  Allen Wright, Member

ABSENT: None
VACANT: None

C.  APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

DRISCOLL/WRIGHT
4/0
AYE: DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, MOORE, WRIGHT
NO: NONE
ABSENT:  HALL (Arrived at 5:21 pm)

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION – 5:05 pm
The meeting opened for any public comments regarding the Closed Session items. There were no
comments.

E. CLOSED SESSION

The Board of Trustees and Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant moved into Closed Session to
discuss the following items:

1. Government Code §54957.6, Conference with Labor Negotiators
Agency Negotiator for the Board:  Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent
Employee Organization: Represented Employees-Certificated

2. Government Code §54957, Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release

3. Government Code §54957, Public Employee Employment, Superintendent Contract Negotiation

F. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 5:55 pm.
DRYDEN/HALL
5/0



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
May 13, 2014

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes

2

REPORT OUT AT 5:56 pm.

The Closed Sessions were for the purpose of discussion only.  No direction was given; no vote was
taken.
Discussion for Item 3, Government Code §54957, Public Employee Employment, Superintendent
Contract Negotiation, was incomplete due to time restrictions.  This Closed Session was moved to
the end of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board meeting tonight in order
to complete the task at hand.

ADJOURN FOR SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING AT 5:57 pm.
DRYDEN/HALL
5/0

G.  INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
a. Loyalton High School Oval Track – Dr. Grant discussed the schematic, drawn by Steve

Alfred, included in the agenda packets. This will not be a regulation track, due to the
fire lane which must remain.  It will be 320 yards, compiled of decomposed granite.
Inside the track can be used for another playing field.

b. Loyalton High School Paving Project – This will be discussed under Action Items.
c. Technology Task Force – The district is close to providing 1 to 1 ratio for computers to students.
d. Report to Board BP 5030 (Student Wellness) Dr. Grant reported to the Board and the

public that our District is complying with the state of California standards for proper
nutrition.  Vending machines contain healthy choices. Cafeteria lunches are meeting state
standards; discussion regarding a salad bar at LHS for next school year is in process.

2. BUSINESS REPORT

There were no comments on the Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/13 to 4/30/14
or the Eighth Month Enrollments for the 2013-2014 School Year.
The correspondence from California Department of Education, FY 2012-13 Federal Audit
Findings, was discussed.  The only finding is lack of separation and internal control because
we are a small administration.

3. STAFF REPORTS

Marla Stock, Administrator for Loyalton High School and Derek Cooper, Administrator for
Loyalton Elementary and Downieville School, gave reports on the end of the year
accomplishments and activities of their schools.

4. SPTA REPORTS

There were no reports.

5. BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS

MOORE stated that he visited Downieville School last week. As always, a great staff and
positive atmosphere.



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
May 13, 2014

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes

3

PUBLIC COMMENT

President Moore opened the meeting for public comment at 7:03 pm.

Megan Meschery of the Sierra Schools Foundation reported that Spring for the Schools Soak in
the Sierras had a smaller turnout than last year and that cooler weather may have played a part.
The Foundation will extend the Spring Grant cycle to June 10; Grantees will be decided by June 12.
Sunday Sept 14 will be the date for the Gran Fondo.

Megan Meschery, Loyalton High School teacher, spoke in regards to the Athletic Director item
on the agenda.  She is in favor of raising the stipend for the AD and stated that it is a difficult job
that includes overseeing three athletic sports and preparing for the school year during the
summer. She stressed the title "Director" as a term that includes authoritative responsibility.

Pat Doyle, Loyalton Elementary School teacher, agreed that the Athletic Director should be
better compensated.  He stated that the amount of work is nonequivalent to the amount
compensated. He listed several stipends that have been eliminated over the past years that could
account for funding an increase in the Athletic Director's compensation.

President Moore closed the meeting for public comment at 7:11 pm.

H.  CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items were included on the consent calendar:
1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held April 8, 2014
2. Approval of the bill warrants for the month of April 2014
3. Assignment of Sandra Anderson, Noon Supervisor, Loyalton Elementary
4. Approval for Out Of State Staff Development for Educators Conference for Ann Fisher,

Karen Gress, Alicia Schofield, and Andrea White, July 7-10, 2014,  in Las Vegas, Nevada
5. Authorization to submit Career Technical Education Application (Perkins) for 2014-2015 Funding
6. Acknowledgement of Review of BP and AR 5116.1 (Intradistrict Open Enrollment)

WRIGHT/HALL
5/0

I.  ACTION ITEMS

1. NEW BUSINESS

1314-206 Action on Superintendent’s Recommendation Regarding the Termination of 1.0 FTE
Certificated Employee and Reduction of .5 FTE Certificated Employee as a Result of
Reduction of Particular Kinds of Service
DRYDEN/HALL
5/0

1314-207 Acceptance of letter of resignation from Catherine Stewart, Instructional Aide,
Downieville School, effective June 30, 2014
Ms. Stewart was described by Ms. Schofield as “A Rock” for her class. DRISCOLL
motioned to accept, with regret, the resignation of Ms. Stewart.
DRISCOLL/WRIGHT
5/0



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
May 13, 2014

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes

4

1314-208 Authorization to fill Instructional Aide position, Downieville School, 5 hours daily,
funded by Title 1 and Unrestricted resources
WRIGHT/HALL
5/0

1314-209 Authorization to hire 1.0 FTE Instructional Support and Intervention Teacher, Loyalton
Elementary School
WRIGHT/HALL
5/0

PUBLIC HEARING-Prop 30/EPA

1314-210 The Purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the Use of
Proposition 30 funds, Education Protection Account
Ms. Asquith explained that the Education Fund Proposition was approved by the voters.
The major target of funding will be the Loyalton High School teachers.

There was no public comment.

PUBLIC HEARING-LCAP

1314-211 The Purpose of the Public Hearing is to present the 2014-15 Local Control and
Accountability Plan and to address any public comments and questions
The Four main goals are as follows: Conditions of Learning, Pupil Outcomes and
Engagement and Facilities. Where the County LCAP focuses more on services, the
District LCAP will focus highly on the classroom.
The State of California strongly recommends student topics as stated in the California
Education Code.  One of those topics is K-12 science, using science fairs as a type of
culminating experience.  Therefore, it is listed as a Goal.
Rose: In regards to #3, Actions, Services and Expenditures, the local control base
funding can funnel through all students. Depending on the unduplicated count, we are
allotted extra funds. A percentage of those funds must be set aside for that group. We
will justify how this is accomplished in the LCAP.

There were no comments from the community. The Public Hearing Closed at 7:20 pm.

PUBLIC HEARING-S-PJUSD Budget

1314-212 The Purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on 2014-15 Proposed
Budget
Page 2 on the Financials/Increase and Decrease, Estimated Actuals for this year we
should increase our fund balance by almost $400,000; next year deficit spending almost
$70,000. SRS came in about $25,000 less.

Computers costs written in the budget are: $21,000 LES iPad lab, $13,000 for Google
Chrome for LHS; $7,000 for DVL.
Roughly $51,000 is set aside for sports stipends and $11,500 for other sports costs.
We anticipate Office of Public School Construction monies for the Loyalton High
School re-roof project by the end of the year.



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
May 13, 2014

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes

5

Public Question:   Please confirm that Prop 39 money will carry over and explain how
we can use it? Response: Yes, it will carry over into 2014-15 for energy efficient
projects only, i.e., windows, heaters.

The Public Hearing Closed at 7:42 pm.

1314-213 Adoption of Resolution No. 13-010, Use of School Facilities
DRYDEN/DRISCOLL
5/0
ROLL CALL VOTE
TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE
TRUSTEE DRYDEN AYE
TRUSTEE HALL AYE
TRUSTEE MOORE AYE
TRUSTEE WRIGHT AYE

1314-214 Adoption of Resolution No. 13-011, Old Loyalton Middle School
DRYDEN motioned to adopt Resolution No. 13-011 with the following changes:
Indicate a selling price of $25,000 for Exhibit A, Parcel 1 and a selling price of $1 for
the Exhibit A, Parcel 2 (school site)
5/0
DRYDEN/DRISCOLL
ROLL CALL VOTE
TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE
TRUSTEE DRYDEN AYE
TRUSTEE HALL AYE
TRUSTEE MOORE AYE
TRUSTEE WRIGHT AYE

1314-215 Approval of Loyalton High School Interim WASC Report (presented at April 2014
Board Meeting) WRIGHT/DRISCOLL
5/0

1314-216 Approval of Loyalton High School Mission Statement and Athletic Mission Statement\
DRYDEN/DRISCOLL
5/0

1314-217 Discussion on Stipend for Athletic Director, Loyalton High School
MOORE stated that this is a negotiable item and must go through SPTA and a formal
request must be made to the Board.  There was no discussion.

1314-218 Approval to Award Bid to McCuen Construction, Inc., for Loyalton High School Paving
Replacement Project
DRYDEN motioned to award the Bid to McCuen Construction, Inc., for Loyalton High
School Paving Replacement Project, choosing Option #2 as presented by the CRM
Group-bid price of $185,908.
DRISCOLL seconded.
5/0



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
May 13, 2014

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes

6

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS
WRIGHT motioned to approve Items 121 to 123 with the following edition to AR 5144, Discipline:
REMOVE  "Students may be offered the choice of serving their detention on Saturday rather than
after school"/HALL seconded
5/0

1314-219 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3260, Fees and Charges,
revision

1314-220 Approval of Administrative Regulation 3460, Financial Reports and Accountability,
revision

1314-221 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5144, Discipline, revision,
removing reference to optional Saturday detention.

J.  ADVANCED PLANNING

1. The next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Wednesday, June 18, 2014, Downieville School,
Downieville, California, immediately following the 6:00 pm meeting of the Sierra County Board
of Education, or at 5:00 pm when a Closed Session is necessitated.

2. Suggested Agenda items:

a. LCAP
b. Budget
c. Downieville painting
d. WASC progress report for Downieville

MOTION TO MOVE INTO CLOSED SESSION
DRISCOLL /HALL
5/0
The Board moved into Closed Session to discuss Government Code §54957, Public Employee
Employment, Superintendent Contract Negotiation at 8:07 pm.

REPORT OUT at 9:09 pm.

No Action was taken.  The Board made recommendations regarding the Superintendent Contract.

K.  ADJOURNMENT

DRYDEN/DRISCOLL
5/0
ADJOURNED at 9:10 pm.

______________________                                     ____________________________________
Sharon Dryden, Clerk Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting
May 13, 2014

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes

7



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 05/01/2014 through 05/31/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

ABSOLUTE COMMUNICATION        SOLUTIONS 01-589005/09/201400079270 333.90 

AIRGAS, USA, LLC 01-560005/09/201400079271 264.42 

AT&T 01-589005/09/201400079272 29.68 

01-5899 31.24 

01-5910 348.96 288.04 

PENNY BERRY 01-589005/09/201400079273 540.00 

CDW GOVERNMENT, INC 01-440005/09/201400079274 656.87 

CITY OF LOYALTON 01-553005/09/201400079275 3,837.65 

01-5899 4,047.22 209.57 

CURRENT ELECTRIC & ALARM, INC. 01-560005/09/201400079276 2,185.50 

DOWNIEVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY DIS 01-553005/09/201400079277 153.00 

EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT        

DEPARTMENT

01-350105/09/201400079278 379.65 

01-3502 1,086.81 707.16 

FLINN SCIENTIFIC, INC. 01-430005/09/201400079279 68.36 

GOLD COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 13-470005/09/201400079280 162.26 

HUNT & SONS, INC. 01-559005/09/201400079281 416.91 

INLAND SUPPLY 01-430005/09/201400079282 53.75 

K 12 MANAGEMENT INC. 01-589005/09/201400079283 2,220.00 

KATHLEEN A. O'HARA KELLY 01-589005/09/201400079284 250.00 

MARIAN LAVEZZOLA 01-560005/09/201400079285 200.00 

LIBERTY UTILITIES 01-551005/09/201400079286 7,152.14 

01-5899 7,378.30 226.16 

MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-470005/09/201400079287 224.94 

MIKE MOORE 76-957605/09/201400079288 554.20 

MOTOR ELECTRIC SERVICE 01-430005/09/201400079289 30.00 

MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 40-589005/09/201400079290 135.00 

CRM GROUP 40-589005/09/201400079291 1,750.00 

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-551005/09/201400079292 1,339.51 

POSTMASTER, LOYALTON 01-430005/09/201400079293 245.00 

QUILL CORPORATION 01-430005/09/201400079294 152.30 

SCHOOL SPECIALTY 01-430005/09/201400079295 109.80 

SIERRA BOOSTER 01-589005/09/201400079296 13.75 

SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH          DEPARTMENT 01-551005/09/201400079297 289.50 

SIERRA DISPOSAL 01-552005/09/201400079298 686.50 

01-5899 700.00 13.50 

SIERRA HARDWARE 01-430005/09/201400079299 123.91 

SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-430005/09/201400079300 451.63 

SINGLETON AUMAN PC 01-584005/09/201400079301 1,500.00 

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMM. 01-430005/09/201400079302 543.96 

01-5899 725.28 181.32 

CDE, CASHIER'S OFFICE 13-470005/09/201400079303 127.40 

SUBURBAN PROPANE 01-554005/09/201400079304 294.10 

TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 01-589005/09/201400079305 100.00 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-390205/09/201400079306 2,479.27 

01-9535 12,556.73 

76-9576 72,976.36 57,940.36 

Page 1 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  3 2014  3:00PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 05/01/2014 through 05/31/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

U.S. BANK 01-430005/09/201400079307 3,859.29 

01-5899 3,974.29 115.00 

US FOODSERVICE, INC. 13-430005/09/201400079308 544.15 

13-4700 2,323.35 1,779.20 

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC. 01-430005/09/201400079309 400.27 

01-5200 331.62 

01-9210 1,346.51 614.62 

WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY COMPANY 01-430005/09/201400079310 48.27 

40-4300 220.07 

Unpaid Sales Tax 18.72- 249.62 

CAMILLE ALFRED 01-520005/19/201400079311 36.00 

STEVEN A. ALFRED 01-589005/19/201400079312 910.00 

CALIFORNIA LEAGUE OF SCHOOLS 01-520005/19/201400079313 299.00 

COMMERCIAL LIGHTING 01-430005/19/201400079314 2,474.51 

Unpaid Sales Tax 156.74- 2,317.77 

LYNN W. FILLO 01-520005/19/201400079315 11.00 

W.W. GRAINGER, INC. 01-430005/19/201400079316 2,866.77 

HEAT TRANSFER SYSTEMS 01-650005/19/201400079317 332.50 

HYATT REGENCY SAN FRANCISCO 01-520005/19/201400079318 1,012.78 

JOSTENS 01-430005/19/201400079319 43.74 

R&J JOY, INC.                 DBA JOY 

ENGINEERING

40-430005/19/201400079320 488.83 

KATHLEEN A. O'HARA KELLY 01-589005/19/201400079321 150.00 

LES SCHAWB TIRE CENTER 01-435005/19/201400079322 856.70 

MADDEN PLUMBING & HEATING,INC. 01-560005/19/201400079323 4,230.00 

MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-470005/19/201400079324 621.72 

MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 01-589005/19/201400079325 112.50 

01-5899 97.50 

13-5800 225.00 15.00 

NEVADA POWER PRODUCTS, INC 01-430005/19/201400079326 671.69 

NCS PEARSON,INC.              POWER SCHOOL, 

INC.

01-520005/19/201400079327 2,420.00 

01-5899 4,400.00 1,980.00 

QUILL CORPORATION 01-430005/19/201400079328 298.71 

ROTARY CLUB OF LOYALTON 01-520005/19/201400079329 165.00 

01-5300 195.00 30.00 

SCHOOL PATHWAYS LLC 01-580005/19/201400079330 150.00 

SIERRA TRANSPORTATION         COMPANY, 

LLC

01-510005/19/201400079331 13,463.08 

01-5890 15,685.28 2,222.20 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE         ACCOUNTING 

OFFICE

01-589005/19/201400079332 32.00 

CDE, CASHIER'S OFFICE 13-470005/19/201400079333 41.60 

STENCILS ONLINE, LLC 01-430005/19/201400079334 587.70 

Unpaid Sales Tax 40.45- 547.25 

MARLA STOCK 01-520005/19/201400079335 22.00 

CATA 01-520005/19/201400079336 300.00 

WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY COMPANY 40-430005/19/201400079337 2,838.04 

Page 2 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  3 2014  3:00PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 05/01/2014 through 05/31/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

Unpaid Sales Tax 198.00- 2,640.04 

WAYNE  WHITE                  WHITE'S BUS 01-510005/19/201400079338 112,500.00 

01-5890 119,150.00 6,650.00 

268,638.09 Total Number of Checks 69 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 58 201,609.23 01

Cafeteria Fund 7 3,516.27 13

Special Reserve for Capital Ou 5 5,431.94 40

Warrant/Pass Though (payroll) 2 58,494.56 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 269,052.00 

413.91-

268,638.09 

69 

Page 3 of 3

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  3 2014  3:00PM006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School 

District

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.























2014-2015 EXTRA DUTY ASSIGNMENTS
Position Stipend Personnel Personnel Personnel Personnel

Downieville LHS LMS 7th/8th LES K-6th
Site-Tech Coordinator (DVL,Loyalton Jr/Sr High) 1500 S Tassone B Jaquez A White
Teacher In-Charge, Semester 1 1000 A Schofield J McHenry

Teacher In-Charge, Semester 2 1000 A Schofield J McHenry

Lead Teacher 1000/mo A Corcoran -- --

WASC Lead, Maintenance Year 500 J McHenry -- --
Response to Intervention
Coordinator LES K-6, LJH 7-8

1000 B Jaquez E Folchi
Response to Intervention
Coordinator LHS, DVL (k-12)

500 B  Jaquez -- --
Coaching Assignments

Athletic Director - Loyalton High 4000 -- K Campbell -- --

Athletic Director - Downieville 1000 S Fillo -- --

Athletic Director - Loyalton Elem.
6,7,8

1000 -- A White
Grades 6,7,8
8Varsity Football LHS 2000 -- B Campbell -- --

Assistant Varsity Football LHS 1500 -- G Marr -- --

Varsity Basketball - Boys 2000 E Grandi -- --

J.V. Basketball - Boys 2000 -- -- --

Varsity Basketball - Girls 2000 S Fillo B Davis -- --

J.V Basketball – Girls 2000 -- S Hood -- --

7th Grade Basketball – Boys 500 -- --

8th Grade Basketball – Boys 500 -- --

7th Grade Basketball - Girls 500 -- --

8th Grade Basketball – Girls 500 -- --

7th/8th Gr COED Basketball 1500 S Fillo -- --

Boys Baseball 2000 -- B Roberti -- --

Girls Softball 2000 -- B Campbell -- --

Varsity Volleyball - Girls 2000 J Guidotti -- --

JV Volleyball Girls 1500 -- S Hastings -- --

Track 2000 -- S Gressel -- --

Tennis 1500 -- --

Cheerleading Advisor -Semester1 1000 -- R McBride -- --

Cheerleading Advisor-Semester 2 1000 -- R McBride -- --

Physical Fitness Coordinator-
District-wide

500 C Griffin
District-wide

-- -- --
Cross Country Coach 500 -- --

Golf 1500 -- --
Presented to the Governing Board: June 18, 2014 Doc:2014-15 Extra Duty Assign w_names BOARD vers 6/10/14



 

 

 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  13-011 

 
LOYALTON INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL BUILDING DISPOSITION 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 03-025, adopted April 20, 2004, directed closure of Loyalton Middle School, 
605 School Street, Loyalton, California, APN 017-082-004, effective June 30, 2005; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 04-036, adopted May 10, 2005, extended the closure of Loyalton Middle 

School, 605 School Street, Loyalton, California, APN 017-082-004, to June 30, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 07-019, adopted November 13, 2007, agreed to lease all or part of Loyalton 

Middle School, 605 School Street, Loyalton, California, APN 017-082-004 (hereinafter referred to as 
APN 017-082-004); and 
 
WHEREAS, this Resolution will supersede Resolution 07-019; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Education Code 17388, Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board 

approved the appointment of a School District Advisory Committee at its October 26, 2005, Board 
Meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board recognizes that a 

portion of APN 017-082-004 is no longer needed for the education of Sierra-Plumas students; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board wishes to adjust the 

boundaries to APN 017-082-004 to three separate parcels; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board declares a portion of 

APN 017-082-004, as described in Exhibit A, Parcel 1 and Exhibit A, Parcel 2, as surplus; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board mission is to provide the 

best available education opportunities to all students in Sierra County; and 
 
WHEREAS, as per Education Code 17466, Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing 

Board intends to sell APN 017-082-004, Exhibit A, Parcel 1 for a minimum price twenty-five thousand 
dollars ($25,000) and Exhibit A, Parcel 2, for one dollar ($1.00); and 
 
WHEREAS, there will be no commission or rate which the Board will pay to a licensed real estate 
broker; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, which the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Governing Board agrees to dispose of 605 School Street, Loyalton, California, APN 017-082-004, 
Exhibit A, Parcel 1 and Exhibit A, Parcel 2. 
 

Passed and adopted at a board meeting of the Sierra-Plumas Unified School Governing Board held 
on June 18, 2014, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   DRISCOLL, DRYDEN, HALL, MOORE, WRIGHT 
NOES:  NONE 
ABSENT:  NONE  
ABSTAIN: NONE  
VACANT:  NONE      ____________________________ 
        Sharon Dryden, Clerk 



Resolution No. 13-012

RESOLUTION ORDERING ELECTION,
REQUESTING COUNTY ELECTIONS TO CONDUCT THE ELECTION,

REQUESTING CONSOLIDATION OF THE ELECTION, AND
SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code Section 5322, whenever a school district
election is ordered, the governing board of the district or the board or officer authorized to make
such designations shall, concurrently with or after the order of election, but not less than 123
days prior to the date set for the election in the case of an election for governing board members,
or at least 88 days prior to the date of the election in the case of an election on a measure,
including a bond measure, by resolution delivered to the county superintendent of schools and
the officer conducting the election specify the date of the election and the purpose of the
election;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10002, the governing body of any city
or district may by resolution request the Board of Supervisors of the county to permit the county
elections official to render specified services to the city or district relating to the conduct of an
election;

WHEREAS, the resolution of the governing body of the city or district shall specify the
services requested; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10400, whenever two or more elections,
including bond elections, of any legislative or congressional district, public district, city, county,
or other political subdivision are called to be held on the same day, in the same territory, or in
territory that is in part the same, they may be consolidated upon the order of the governing body
or bodies or officer or officers calling the elections; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code Section 10403, whenever an election called by a
district, city or other political subdivision for the submission of any question, proposition, or
office to be filled is to be consolidated with a statewide election, and the question, proposition, or
office to be filled is to appear upon the same ballot as that provided for that statewide election,
the district, city or other political subdivision shall, at least 88 days prior to the date of the
election, file with the board of supervisors, and a copy with the elections official, a resolution of
its governing board requesting the consolidation, and setting forth the exact form of any
question, proposition, or office to be voted upon at the election, as it is to appear on the ballot.
Upon such request, the Board of Supervisors may order the consolidation; and

WHEREAS, the resolution requesting the consolidation shall be adopted and filed at the
same time as the adoption of the ordinance, resolution, or order calling the election; and



2

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code Section 5342 and Elections Code Section
10400, such election for school districts may be either completely or partially consolidated;

WHEREAS, various district, county, and statewide and other political subdivision
elections have been or may be called to be held on November 4, 2014;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED THAT the Governing
Board/Board of Trustees of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District hereby orders an
election to be called and consolidated with any and all elections also called to be held on
November 4, 2014, insofar as said elections are to be held in the same territory or in territory that
is in part the same as the territory of the school district request to the Board of Supervisors of the
County of Sierra and County of Plumas to order such consolidation under Elections Code
Section 10400; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that said School Board hereby requests
the Board of Supervisors to permit the Sierra County and Plumas County Elections Department
to provide any and all services necessary for conducting the election and agrees to pay for said
services pursuant to Elections Code §10520; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that pursuant to Education Code
Section 5322, the authority for the specifications of the election order, the governing body of the
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District hereby orders an election to be held with the
following specifications:

The election shall be held on Tuesday, November 4, 2014;

Check the following that apply:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Sierra County and Plumas
County Elections Department conduct the election for the following OFFICE/S on the
November 4, 2014 ballot:

SEATS OPEN OFFICE TERM

Trustee Area #2 4 years
Trustee Area #4 4 years
Trustee Area #5 4 years

No election will be held if there are an insufficient number of nominees.

The qualifications of a nominee of an elective officer of the school district are as follows (i.e. a
registered voter in the district, trustee area, etc.)

The Candidate’s Statement of Qualifications shall be limited to 200 words and will be paid for
by the ( ) district OR (X) candidate.



3

Date of last map change: November 2006. A current map showing the boundaries within the
County of the school district and the divisions of the school district, if any, is attached.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Sierra County and Plumas
County Elections Department shall conduct the election for the following MEASURE(S)
to be voted on at the November 4, 2014 election: (insert 75-word ballot question here or
attach, if more than one)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Sierra County and Plumas
County Elections Department is requested to: [Check one of the following]

Print the attached measure text exactly as filed in the Voter’s Information Pamphlet
section of the Sample Ballot for the November 4, 2014 election. Cost of printing and
distribution of the measure text will be paid for by the district.

Not to print the measure text in the Voter’s Information Pamphlet of the Sample Ballot
but send a copy to voters upon request at the cost of said district.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Sierra County and Plumas
County Elections Department is ordered that in the event of a tie vote, the candidate will
be selected by:

Run-off election
By lot

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sierra Plums Joint Unified School District, County of
Sierra, State of California, this 18th day of June, 2014, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:
ABSENT:

Michael Moore, President and
Chairperson of said School District Governing Board

Attested:
Clerk of the S-PJUSD Governing Board













































 

 

Superintendent Agreement July 1, 2014 Page 1 
 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION, 

AND 

MERRILL M. GRANT, Ed. D. 

 

 

1. TITLE 

 

This Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on July 1, 2014, between the 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, hereinafter “District,” the Sierra County Board of 

Education, hereinafter “County Board”, and Merrill M. Grant, hereinafter “District 

Superintendent”. 

 

2.   TERM 

 

The District hereby employs Merrill M. Grant for a term of three (3) years, commencing  

July 1, 2014, and ending June 30, 2017, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.   

 

3.   SUPERINTENDENT’S DISTRICT DUTIES 

 

District Superintendent shall serve as chief executive officer and secretary of the District 

Governing Board pursuant to Education Code Sections 35034 and 35035.  The District 

Superintendent shall perform the duties of District Superintendent as prescribed by the laws of the 

State of California and Board Policy and shall carry out the directions, responsibilities, duties and 

policies of the District Governing Board listed in the job description known as the Sierra-Plumas 

Joint Unified School District Policy No. 207.1, Superintendent of Schools. 

 

 4.  BASE SALARY 

 

District 

 

The District shall pay District Superintendent a salary of One Hundred and Eighteen Thousand, 

Five Hundred Twenty Nine Dollars ($118,529) for the term of this Agreement, excluding employer 

paid benefits, i.e. Worker’s Compensation, State Unemployment Insurance, OASDI and Medicare 

for the term of this Agreement.  Said salary shall be payable in twelve (12) equal monthly 

payments payable on the last working day of each calendar month, with the first payment on  

July 31, 2014.  When only a portion of any year or month is served, the District Superintendent’s 

salary shall be prorated to reflect such service.  The District Superintendent’s daily rate shall be 

computed by dividing the annual salary by 191.25.  An increase to the District Superintendent's 

salary of 3.0% shall be effective July 1, 2015, in consideration of the 6.5% salary increase afforded 

to all employees during the 2013/14 fiscal year. 

 

The District Governing Board reserves the right to modify the annual salary of the District 

Superintendent with the consent of the District Governing Board.  Any adjustment in salary made 

during the term of this Agreement shall be in the form of an amendment to this Agreement and 

shall not be viewed as extending the term of this Agreement unless it so specifically states. 



 

 

Superintendent Agreement July 1, 2014 Page 2 
 

County Board 

 

The County Board shall pay the County Superintendent a salary of Twenty Thousand Nine 

Hundred Seventeen Dollars ($20,917.00) for the term of this Agreement, excluding employer paid 

benefits, i.e. Worker’s Compensation, State Unemployment Insurance, OASDI and Medicare for 

the term of this Agreement.  Said salary shall be payable in twelve (12) equal monthly payments 

payable on the last working day of each calendar month, with the first payment on July 31, 2014.    

When only a portion of any year or month is served, the District Superintendent’s salary shall be 

prorated to reflect such service.  The District Superintendent’s daily rate shall be computed by 

dividing the annual salary by 33.75.  An increase to the County Superintendent's salary of 3% shall 

be effective July 1, 2015. 

 

5. CREDENTIAL 

 

It is agreed that the District Superintendent shall furnish to District throughout the life of this 

Agreement a valid and appropriate credential issued by the California Commission on Teacher 

Credentialing to act as an administrator in the District. 

 

6. COUNTY SUPERINTENDENCY 

 

The District Superintendent agrees to serve as County Superintendent for the duration of this 

Agreement.  

 

7. DISTRICT BOARD BENEFITS 

 

During the term of this Agreement, the District Superintendent shall be entitled to receive from the 

District, all health, dental, vision, life and other fringe District-paid portion benefits provided   

administrative employees, including and not necessarily limited to, Worker’s Compensation, State 

Unemployment Insurance, OASDI and Medicare.  

 

8. DISTRICT WORK YEAR  

 

The District Superintendent shall work eighty five (85) percent (191.25 days) on District matters 

for a total of District/County Superintendency of 225 days per annum to equal one (1.0) F.T.E.  

The District Governing Board and the District Superintendent prior to September 1 of each year 

shall mutually agree upon a calendar for the service days.  As an exempt employee under the Fair 

Labor Standards Act, he shall be ineligible for either overtime pay or compensatory time off.  

 

9. DISTRICT LEAVE BENEFITS 

 

As a District employee: 

 

a) The District Superintendent shall be entitled to twelve (12) days of sick leave each 

District Agreement year, which may be accumulated from year to year.   

 

b) District Superintendent shall be entitled to the holidays defined in Education Code 

Section 37220 and granted by the District Board for all District employees and for 



 

 

Superintendent Agreement July 1, 2014 Page 3 
 

any other holidays declared by the District Board for all employees; however the 

District Superintendent’s actual workdays shall be 191.25. 

 

c) District Superintendent shall not be entitled to any days of District paid vacation. 

 

Except in cases of illness or personal emergency, District Superintendent shall notify the 

District Board President in advance of any full day’s absence from the District, which is 

more than two (2) consecutive working days.  In cases of illness or personal emergency 

resulting in absence from the District for more than two consecutive working days, the 

District Superintendent shall inform the District Board President as soon as practicable.  

Except in cases of illness or emergency, absences from the District of more than four (4) 

consecutive working days shall be taken at a time agreeable to the Board President. 

 

10. COUNTY WORK YEAR 

 

County Superintendent shall work fifteen (15) percent (33.75 days of 225) of 1.0 F.T.E on 

County Board matters. 

 

11. COUNTY LEAVE BENEFITS 

 

The County Superintendent shall not be entitled to sick leave, holidays, paid vacation or 

health and welfare benefits.  

 

12. EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 

 

District shall pay District Superintendent for the cost of travel and reimbursement for use of his 

own vehicle at the District Board approved mileage rate while in the performance of his duties as 

District Superintendent. 

 

District shall reimburse the District Superintendent for all documented, reasonable, actual and 

necessary expenses incurred by him within the scope of his employment, in accordance with 

District Board Policy and administrative regulations as approved by the District Board within the 

budget for any expenses incurred by him within the scope of his employment and while 

representing the District.   

 

13. MEMBERSHIP AND DUES 

 

The District shall pay membership fees and dues for the District Superintendent for the Association 

of California School Administrators (ACSA). 

 

14. COMMUNICATION DEVICES 

 

The District shall provide a cellular/mobile telephone device and laptop computer for District 

Superintendent for his usage while in the performance of his duties for the duration of this 

Agreement.  Said cellular/mobile telephone device and laptop computer shall be and remain 

exclusive property of the District throughout this Agreement.  

 

 



 

 

Superintendent Agreement July 1, 2014 Page 4 
 

15. PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 

 

District Superintendent shall endeavor to maintain and improve his professional competence.  

District shall pay for all reasonable and necessary expenses for such activities if the District Board 

has approved the activities in advance and funding for them is available in the annual budget. 

 

16. OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 

 

District Superintendent shall devote his time, attention and energy to the business of the District 

except as he may reasonably be engaged in carrying out his duties as County Superintendent. 

However, with the prior approval of the District Governing Board, District Superintendent may 

serve as a consultant, lecture, engage in writing activities and speaking engagements, and engage in 

other activities, which are short-term duration.  If District Superintendent receives pay or an 

honorarium for such activities, District Superintendent shall utilize non-work days for the purpose 

of engaging in such activities. District Superintendent may only utilize workdays for such activities 

with prior approval of the District Board and in no event will the Board be responsible for any 

expenses attendant to the performance of outside activities.  

 

17. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

 

On or before August 1
st
 of each year the District Governing Board and the Superintendent shall 

formally discuss the Superintendent-Board relationship, set the District goals and objectives for 

upcoming year and mutually determine the specific Superintendent goals and objectives that 

support those District goals and objectives. The Board shall annually review the performance of the 

Superintendent as it relates to these goals and objectives.  

 

18. EVALUATION 

 

The District Governing Board shall annually evaluate and assess in writing the performance goals 

and objectives of the District Superintendent.  The Board shall evaluate the District Superintendent 

in performing his duties for the District and shall assess the working relationships between the 

District Superintendent and the District Governing Board. The District Superintendent shall send a 

written reminder to the District Board of the evaluation process by March 1 of each year.  The 

Board shall meet with the District Superintendent in closed session by May 1 of each year to 

discuss the evaluation. If the above notification has occurred and the evaluation was not completed, 

District Superintendent’s performance shall be deemed to be satisfactory.  The evaluation shall be 

based on the position description and mutually agreed upon duties and specified goals and 

objectives in accordance with the procedures authorized in District policies. The Board shall 

deliver the evaluation to the District Superintendent and place a copy in the Superintendent’s 

personnel file. The District Superintendent’s written comments, if any, shall be filed with the 

evaluation in a sealed envelope in the District Superintendent’s personnel file and marked 

“Confidential: To Be Opened by Authorized Personnel Only.” The Governing Board shall, if 

requested by the District Superintendent, within a reasonable time after the District Superintendent 

has heard or received the evaluation, meet to discuss the contents of the evaluation.  

 

The Board shall notify the District Superintendent in writing whether he has performed, in the 

Board’s judgment, satisfactorily or unsatisfactorily. If the Board concludes by majority, that the 

District Superintendent’s performance is below satisfaction, within 30 days of the date of 



 

 

Superintendent Agreement July 1, 2014 Page 5 
 

evaluation, the Board will identify in writing specific areas where improvement is required, 

provide written recommendations for improvement and notify the Superintendent that another 

evaluation will be conducted within six (6) months.  

 

19. CONDITIONS OF REEMPLOYMENT 

 

The Superintendent’s Agreement shall be extended only by District Board action subsequent to 

evaluation of the Superintendent’s performance and in accordance with Government Code Section 

3511.2. 

 

If the majority of the Board agrees that the Superintendent’s over-all performance is standard or 

above, or in the absence of an  evaluation by June 30, 2015, the Superintendent’s Agreement will 

be extended one year, beginning July 1, 2015, under the same terms and conditions, and with the 

same schedule of compensation. 

 

The Board may not hold a special meeting regarding the salary, salary schedule, or other form of 

compensation for any local agency executive.  Rather, these issues must be addressed at a regularly 

scheduled Board meeting with 72 hours advance public notice. 

 

Any Agreement executed or renewed between local agency and a local agency executive shall not 

provide for the following: 

 

Government Code 3511.2 

(a) An automatic renewal of a Agreement that provides  for an automatic increase in the level 

of compensation that exceeds a cost-of-living adjustment; 

(b) A maximum cash settlement that exceeds the amounts determined pursuant to Article 3.5 

of Title 5.  

 

20. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT PRIOR TO FULFILLMENT 

 

The District Governing Board action to terminate this Agreement prior to fulfillment, with or 

without cause, other than by mutual consent of the parties hereto shall require a super majority 

(80%) vote of the Governing Board.  

 

a. Mutual Agreement.  This Agreement between the District Board and District 

Superintendent may be changed or terminated by mutual consent, provided, 

however, that the party seeking termination shall provide no less than sixty (60) 

days written notice to the other party. Additional amendments may be added to the 

Agreement by mutual consent of both parties at any time during the period of this 

Agreement.   

 

b. Disability or Incapacity.  Should the District Superintendent be unable to serve in 

his District position due to a physical and/or mental condition(s), upon expiration of 

District Superintendent’s sick leave entitlement as provided by statute and District 

policy plus an additional period of thirty (30) calendar days, this Agreement shall be 

deemed terminated.  Such determination will be made upon receipt of a written 

evaluation by a licensed physician mutually designated and paid for by the District 



 

 

Superintendent Agreement July 1, 2014 Page 6 
 

indicating the inability of the District Superintendent to further serve in his position 

of employment. 

 

If District Superintendent is absent from his District duties for a period of thirty (30) 

calendar days or more, it is understood and agreed that the District Governing Board 

may appoint an Interim District Superintendent for the remainder of the period of 

District Superintendent’s absence plus one week.  The Interim District Superintendent 

shall perform all of the duties of the District’s Superintendent and have all of the 

responsibilities of the position. 

 

c. Death of District Superintendent.  This Agreement is automatically terminated upon the 

death of the County Superintendent. 

 

d. Discharge for Cause.  Employment of District Superintendent pursuant to this 

Agreement may be terminated for cause.  District Superintendent shall be given written 

notice of any matter allegedly constituting grounds for District termination for cause.  

Grounds for District termination for cause include, but are not limited to:  (1) failure to 

substantially perform duties set forth in this Agreement; (2) the occurrence of any event 

which would justify revocation of a credential as set forth in Education Code Section 

44420 et seq.; and (3) the occurrence of any event which would justify dismissal of a 

tenured certificated employee as set forth in Education Code Section 44932 et. seq.  

Prior to being terminated for cause from District, District Superintendent shall be 

afforded the protection of procedural due process, including:  the right to written notice 

of the charges before the full District Governing Board; the right to representation by 

counsel at his expense; the right to present witnesses and evidence on his behalf and to 

cross-examine witnesses presented against him; and the right to a decision based on the 

matters at the hearing and stating the grounds for any action.  The hearing before the 

District Governing Board shall be the District Superintendent’s exclusive right to any 

hearing regarding District employment otherwise required by law. 

 

In the event District Superintendent’s District employment is terminated for cause, no 

further payment shall be made to District Superintendent under this Agreement, which 

shall be deemed terminated. 

e. Unilateral Termination.  The District Governing Board may, at its option, unilaterally 

terminate this Agreement without cause in accordance with law and applicable 

Agreement provisions.  If such a unilateral termination occurs, the District 

Superintendent shall be paid an amount equal to his monthly District salary multiplied 

by the number of months left on the unexpired term of the Agreement. If the unexpired 

term of the Agreement is more than 12 months, the maximum cash settlement shall be 

no greater than the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by 12. The cash 

settlement shall not include any noncash items which may be continued for the 

unexpired term of the Agreement up to 12 calendar months or until the Superintendent 

finds other employment, whichever occurs first. (Government Code 53260, 53261)  

(AR4317.5 - Termination Agreements)  

However, when the termination of the Superintendent's Agreement is based upon the 

Board's belief and subsequent confirmation through an independent audit that the 

http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/144891/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/144892/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/467055/2


 

 

Superintendent Agreement July 1, 2014 Page 7 
 

Superintendent has engaged in fraud, misappropriation of funds, or other illegal fiscal 

practices, the maximum settlement shall be as determined by an administrative law 

judge but no greater than the Superintendent's monthly salary multiplied by six (6). 

(Government Code 53260)  

In addition, if the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of his/her 

office or position, he/she shall reimburse the district for payments he/she receives as 

paid leave salary pending investigation or as cash settlement upon his/her termination, 

and for any funds expended by the district in his/her defense against a crime involving 

his/her office or position. (Government Code 53243-53243.4, 53260) 

f. Non-renewal.  The District Governing Board may elect not to renew this Agreement for 

any reason and shall provide District Superintendent with written notice of this fact no 

later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Agreement.   

 

21. GENERAL PROVISION 

 

a) Governing Law.  This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of the parties, shall be 

governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

 

b) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding 

between the parties.  It supersedes and replaces any prior agreement between the 

parties.  There are no oral understandings, terms or conditions, and neither party has 

relied upon any representation, express or implied, not contained in this Agreement. 

 

c) Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended at any time during the term of the 

Agreement.  However, such amendment shall be in writing and is only effective with 

the mutual consent of the District Superintendent and the District Governing Board. 

 

d) Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable 

by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall 

continue in full force and effect. 

 

e) Attorneys Fees.  Should legal action be brought in regard to this Agreement, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to recovery of attorney’s fees. 

 

22. RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 

It is understood by the Parties to this Agreement that the effect of any improvement in 

compensation as well as the initiation date of such compensation as provided herein is reviewable 

by the California State Teachers Retirement System “STRS” for purposes of determining any 

District Superintendent’s retirement benefits.  It is further understood that such determination is 

not a matter of determination by the Parties but is a matter solely within the discretion of STRS 

based on STRS statutory and regulatory standards of which the Parties are aware and with which 

the Parties must fully comply. 

 

 

 

http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/144891/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/721292/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/721296/2
http://www.gamutonline.net/displayPolicy/144891/2


 

 

Superintendent Agreement July 1, 2014 Page 8 
 

 

Dated: ___________________, 2014                  

Allen Wright, President, Sierra County  

Board of Education   

         

 

 

Dated: ___________________, 2014        

          Michael Moore, President, Governing Board             

          Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

 

 

 

Dated:____________________, 2014 ____________________________________ 

      Merrill M. Grant, Ed.D, Superintendent 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

(Signed copy to Personnel File) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Contracts_Agreements_MOU/2014-15/Spt Agreement July 2014_June 2017 



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 1

This Vehicle Lease Agreement ("AGREEMENT") between the Plumas Unified School District
(hereinafter, “PUSD”) and the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District (hereinafter, “SIERRA-
PLUMAS”) entered into for the purpose of providing equipment, repairs and other necessary
and appropriate items for the operation of certain school vehicles defined herein.

RECITALS

Whereas PUSD is a Unified School District organized under the laws of the State of California,
with district offices located in Quincy, in Plumas County, California;

Whereas SIERRA-PLUMAS is a Unified School District organized under the laws of the State of
California, with district offices located in Loyalton, in Sierra County, California;

Whereas, PUSD and SIERRA-PLUMAS are mutually interested in providing adequate
transportation services for their respective students:

Whereas, PUSD owns school vehicles suitable for busing services and is interested in
cooperating with SIERRA-PLUMAS to provide school vehicles; and

Whereas, both parties mutually agree that this Agreement is of value on an individual and
mutual basis.

Now, therefore, it is mutually agreed as follows:

A. PUSD’S RESPONSIBILITIES:

1. PUSD agrees to provide for the purposes of this Agreement the four (4) school vehicles
described in Appendix A, attached hereto, (hereinafter," VEHICLES") to SIERRA-
PLUMAS for use by SIERRA-PLUMAS during the 2014/15 academic school year.

2. PUSD shall deliver the VEHICLES to SIERRA-PLUMAS upon execution of this
AGREEMENT, by making the VEHICLES available for pick-up at the PUSD BUS BARN,
located at 113 No. Mill Creek Rd., Quincy, CA  95971 (hereinafter "DELIVERY").

3. PUSD shall ensure, at the time of DELIVERY, that the VEHICLES are in compliance with
all statutory and regulatory school vehicle licensing, certification and operational
requirements for transporting students, including Title 13 of the California Code of
Regulations, Section 1231.

4. PUSD shall ensure that each of the VEHICLES has a valid and current Vehicle
Inspection Approval Certificate and are ready for service at the time of DELIVERY.

5. PUSD shall perform all required inspections and maintenance of the VEHICLES in
accordance Appendix C and in accordance with the Title 13, California Code of
regulation, Section 1232 and provide a copy of the most recent vehicle maintenance
records per Title 13 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 1232.



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 2

6. PUSD shall provide the VEHICLES to SIERRA-PLUMAS at DELIVERY in good condition
and working order, with fire extinguisher, first aid kit, and all safety equipment required by
the State of California Motor Carrier Property Permit, California Vehicle Code, California
Education Code, and Title 13 of the California Code of Regulations.

7. PUSD will provide all ROUTINE MAINTENANCE for the VEHICLES at the PUSD BUS
BARN at the expense of SIERRA-PLUMAS. ROUTINE MAINTENANCE is defined as
the maintenance described in Appendix Cand is limited to regularly scheduled service
and maintenance/repairs to normal wear and tear. Dates for ROUTINE MAINTENANCE
shall be mutually agreed to by the parties. ROUTINE MAINTENANCE shall not include
any damage, destruction, or wear and tear caused by any unauthorized use or miss-use
of the VEHICLES.

8. PUSD will provide driver training, both in the classroom and behind the wheel, as
required by the State of California, to SIERRA-PLUMAS employees who will be driving
the VEHICLES. Training will take place at PUSD and shall occur before SIERRA-
PLUMAS takes possession of the VEHICLES.

B. SIERRA-PLUMAS’ RESPONSIBILITIES:

1. SIERRA-PLUMAS shall compensate PUSD for use of the VEHCILES in accordance with
the rates defined in Appendix B. Payment shall be made within 30 days of receipt of
invoice.

2. SIERRA-PLUMAS is responsible for transporting the VEHICLES to the PUSD BUS
BARN for all ROUTINE MAINTENANCE and other repairs. In the event of mechanical
breakdown, SIERRA-PLUMAS is responsible for arranging independent tow service to
the PUSD BUS BARN.

3. SIERRA-PLUMAS will reimburse PUSD for all costs and expenses, including parts and
labor as defined in Appendix B, associated with ROUTINE MAINTENANCE and other
repairs of the VEHICLES.

4. SIERRA-PLUMAS will compensate PUSD for classroom and behind the wheel vehicle
driver training in accordance with the rates defined in Appendix B.  Payment shall be
made within 30 days of receipt of invoice.

5. SIERRA-PLUMAS shall notify PLUMAS of any accident, collision, or incident that causes
damage to any of the VEHICLES within 24 hours of said accident, collision, or incident.

6. SIERRA-PLUMAS is responsible for the cost of repairing any damage to the VEHICLES.

7. SIERRA-PLUMAS shall secure and maintain any and all licenses and/or permits required
by law for the operation of the VEHICLES and furnishing of transportation services using
the VEHICLES during the term of this AGREEMENT.



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 3

8. SIERRA-PLUMAS shall comply with and observe all applicable federal, state and local
laws applicable to the transportation of students, all provisions of the California Vehicle
Code, all directives, policies and regulations of the California State Board of Education,
the California Highway Patrol, the Sierra-Plumas JUSD Governing Board, and any other
laws, rules or regulations applicable to the transportation of students.

9. SIERRA-PLUMAS, its employees, and its agents shall secure and maintain valid permits
and licenses and certifications that are required by law for the execution of this
AGREEMENT.

10.Only those SIERRA-PLUMAS employees who have successfully completed the driver
training described in Section A.8. of this AGREEMENT shall be permitted to operate the
VEHICLES.  The successful completion of driver training is to be determined at the sole
discretion of PUSD.  SIERRA-PLUMAS shall bear any and all costs, expenses, and
liabilities that result from the operation of the VEHICLES during the term of this
AGREEMENT by anyone who has not successfully completed the driver training
described in Section A.8. of this AGREEMENT.

11.SIERRA-PLUMAS shall not assign or transfer, by operation of law or otherwise, any or all
of its rights, responsibilities, burdens, duties or obligations under this AGREEMENT.

12.SIERRA-PLUMAS will accept DELIVERY of the VEHICLES following the execution of
this AGREEMENT by arranging to pick up the VEHICLES at the PUSD BUS BARN in
accordance with Section A.2. of this AGREEMENT.

13.SIERRA-PLUMAS shall return the VEHCILES to PUSD by transporting the VEHICLES to
the PUSD BUS BARN on or before June 30th of the final year of this AGREEMENT (See
TERM OF THE AGREEMENT, Section C, herein). The VEHICLES must be returned in
good condition and working order, with fire extinguisher, first aid kit, and all safety
equipment required by the State of California Motor Carrier Property Permit and State
Education Code.  If the VEHICLES are not returned in the condition described above, to
the satisfaction of PUSD in its sole discretion, SIERRA-PLUMAS shall reimburse PUSD
for any and all costs or expenses required to return the VEHICLES to such satisfactory
condition.

14.SIERRA-PLUMAS, at its sole expense, shall procure and maintain throughout the term of
this AGREEMENT, General Liability insurance with a minimum per occurrence limit of
$10,000,000 and the deductible/self-insurance retention shall not exceed $10,000. Such
minimum limits of policies shall in no event limit the liability of SIERRA-PLUMAS
hereunder. Insurance shall include coverage for claims against SIERRA-PLUMAS, it’s
elected or appointed officials, employees, agents, volunteers and students (interns while
acting on behalf of SIERRA-PLUMAS) arising out of errors and omissions, abuse and
molestation, and employment practices liability. The policy or policies shall name as
additional insured/additional covered party PUSD; it’s elected or appointed officials,
employees, agents and volunteers. SIERRA-PLUMAS’s policy or policies shall provide
that their insurance shall be primary with respect to any liability or claimed liability arising
out of the performance or activities by SIERRA-PLUMAS under this AGREEMENT. Any
insurance procured by PUSD, it’s elected or appointed officials, employees, agents and



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 4

volunteers shall be excess and shall not be called upon to contribute until the limits of the
insurance provided hereunder shall be exhausted.

15.Automobile Liability: SIERRA-PLUMAS shall maintain Primary Automobile Liability and
Property Damage Insurance, including non-owned and hired coverage with a minimum
per accident limit of $10,000,000 for any injuries to persons (including death therefrom)
and property damage in connection with SIERRA-PLUMAS’ activities under this
AGREEMENT. SIERRA-PLUMAS’ policy must provide primary auto liability and name
PUSD, its elected or appointed officials, employees, agents and volunteers as additional
insured’s by endorsement to the policy. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
PUSD, its elected or appointed officials, employees, agents and volunteers shall be in
excess of SIERRA-PLUMAS’ insurance and shall not contribute with it. SIERRA-
PLUMAS’ policy must name PUSD as Loss Payee and provide auto physical damage
coverage (comprehensive and collision) for each of the VEHICLES, with deductibles not
to exceed $5,000 per claim.

16.Upon execution of this agreement and annually thereafter, SIERRA-PLUMAS shall
furnish PUSD with original certificates and amendatory endorsements affecting coverage
required by this Agreement. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by PUSD at least ten (10) days before DELIVERY or commencement of any
other activities described in this AGREEMENT. PUSD reserves the right to request
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by this AGREEMENT at any time.

17.Failure of SIERRA-PLUMAS to have adequate acceptable insurance in place, as
determined solely by PUSD, will cause this Agreement to be null and void.

C. TERM OF THE AGREEMENT

The term of this AGREEMENT shall be from July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015.  This
Agreement shall be automatically renewed for an additional fiscal year commencing July 1,
2015, and annually thereafter for a term of two (2) years, unless written notice of intent to
terminate or renegotiate is given by either party prior to March 1 of that same year.

D. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

If a dispute under this AGREEMENT arises, or any party to this AGREEMENT believes that
a breach of this AGREEMENT has occurred, the parties shall schedule a meet-and-confer
within thirty (30) business days of receiving written notification from the other party of the
dispute or alleged breach.  During the meet-and-confer, the parties shall make good-faith
attempt resolve any disputes and remedy any alleged breach of this AGREEMENT.  Any
dispute of claim in law or equity arising under this AGREEMENT which is not resolved
through the meet-and-confer shall be decided by neutral, non-binding arbitration. Arbitration
shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of either the American Arbitration
Association (AAA) or the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services, Inc. (JAMS).  The
selection between AAA and JAMS rules shall be made by the party who first files for the
arbitration.  The parties may agree, in writing, to use different rules and/or arbitrator(s).  In all
other respects, the arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with PART III, Title 9 of the



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 5

California Code of Civil Procedure. The costs of arbitration shall be borne by each
respective party.

E. INDEMNIFICATION.

SIERRA-PLUMAS shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless PUSD, its elected or
appointed officials, employees, attorneys, agents, representatives, volunteers, successors
and assigns (collectively hereinafter the “indemnified parties”) from and against any and all
actions, suits, claims, demands, losses, costs, penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, or
liabilities, including legal costs, attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit
is actually filed, and/or any judgment rendered is against the indemnified parties, that may be
asserted or claimed by any person, firm or entity arising out of, or in connection with,
SIERRA-PLUMAS’s performance under this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to, any
acts or errors or omissions by PUSD, its governing body, administrators, employees, agents,
representatives, volunteers, successors and assigns, unless caused wholly by the
negligence or willful misconduct of any of the indemnified parties.

PUSD shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless SIERRA-PLUMAS, its elected or
appointed officials, employees, attorneys, agents, representatives, volunteers, successors
and assigns (collectively hereinafter the “indemnified parties”) from and against any and all
actions, suits, claims, demands, losses, costs, penalties, obligations, errors, omissions, or
liabilities, including legal costs, attorney’s fees, and expert witness fees, whether or not suit
is actually filed, and/or any judgment rendered is against the indemnified parties, that may be
asserted or claimed by any person, firm or entity arising out of, or in connection with, PUSD’s
performance under this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to, any acts or errors or
omissions by SIERRA-PLUMAS, its governing body, administrators, employees, agents,
representatives, volunteers, successors and assigns, unless caused wholly by the
negligence or willful misconduct of any of the indemnified parties.

F. RISK OF LOSS

Except as otherwise provided in this AGREEMENT, any risk of loss for the VEHICLES shall
transfer to SIERRA-PLUMAS upon DELIVERY and shall transfer back to PUSD upon return
of the VEHICLES at the conclusion of the term of this AGREEMENT.

G. SEVERABILITY

Should any part of this AGREEMENT be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be unenforceable that part alone shall be severed, and the remainder of the AGREEMENT
shall continue in force.

H. CONSTRUCTION

The language in all parts of this AGREEMENT, unless otherwise stated, shall be construed
according to its plain and ordinary meaning.

I. NOTICE TO PARTIES



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 6

All notices to be given by the parties hereto shall be in writing and served by personal
delivery or by depositing same in the United States Post Office, postage prepaid and
certified, addressed as follows:

PLUMAS Unified School District Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Micheline G. Miglis, Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent
50 Church Street P.O. Box 955
Quincy, CA 95971 109 Beckwith Road

Loyalton, CA 96118

J. CHOICE OF LAW

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.

K. MODIFICATION OF THE AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, and any provisions herein, may not be changed, waived, discharged or
terminated unless by a written instrument, signed by the Parties.

L. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT and the attachments hereto contain all of the terms and conditions
agreed upon by the Parties relating to the matters covered by this AGREEMENT, and
supersede any and all prior and contemporaneous agreements, negotiations,
correspondence, understandings, and communications of the Parties, whether oral or
written, respecting the matters covered by this AGREEMENT. All agreements, covenants,
representations and warranties, express or implied, oral or written, of the Parties concerning
the subject matter of this AGREEMENT are contained herein.

M. FORMALITIES OF EXECUTION

This AGREEMENT may be executed in one or more counterparts which, taken together,
shall be deemed to constitute one and the same document. An executed copy of this
AGREEMENT shall be valid as an original. Signatures of the Parties transmitted by facsimile
or email shall be deemed binding.

N. AUTHORITY TO SIGN

The undersigned are authorized to execute this AGREEMENT on behalf of their respective
agencies and have read, understood and agreed to all of the terms and conditions of this
AGREEMENT.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT the day and year
hereinabove written and have affixed their official seals hereto.

Plumas Unified School District Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 7

By:___________________________ By:____________________________
Micheline G. Miglis Dr. Merrill M. Grant
Superintendent Superintendent



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 8

Appendix A

Vehicle Description: Up to four California State regulated school busses with passenger
capacity ranging between 52 and 78.



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 9

Appendix B

Cost per vehicle, per actual mile driven…………………………..$1.25

Cost for behind the wheel training…………………………………$60.00/hour

Cost for classroom training…………………………………………$60.00/hour

Maintenance work…………………………………………………...parts plus labor (itemized below)
plus 10% surcharge on parts for non-itemized supplies

Cost for Labor per hour……………………………………………...$60.00/hour

Cost for parts, plus overhead charge………………………………cost plus 15%



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 10

Appendix C

Routine Maintenance of VEHICLES

3,000 mile or 45 day service

Grease all the fittings

Brake adjustment axle #1 and #2

Brake system for leaks, hoses and tubing, cut-in and cut-out, air loss

Brake components: drums, lining, cams, air-pots, hydraulic cylinders, etc.

Two way check valve in dual air systems, alternately draining and recharging primary and secondary air
reservoirs

All tank mounting brackets

All belts and hoses fro wear and chaffing-including air hoses

Tires, wheels, lugs, air pressure and tread

Steering arms, drag links, and tie rod ends

Suspension, bushings, springs, u-bolts and king pins

1232C (Federal code) : Oil or grease accumulations, excessive amounts of grease or oil on the vehicle
shall be removed and their cause repaired

First aid kit, reflectors, and fire extinguisher

All glass, wipers and mirrors

All lights and horns – interior and exterior

Heating and /or cooling systems

All door operations, sensitive edges, handrails, safety panels and door locks

All upholstery and padding

All lettering and decals

Battery fluid, terminals and cables

Fuel system for leaks

Oil leaks – engine, tranny, differentials and axles

All fluid levels

Body mounts

Exhaust – condition, leaks and mounting

Check, clean and make sure the camera is working correctly

Check and adjust the ride height

Cleanliness of the bus



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 11

On Spots During the Season
Check torque of mounting bracket, chain unit, chain wheel

Check and grease arm bearing and ball joint

Check for chain and wheel wear

Check air-pot pressure for the wheel

Engine Oil Change

New oil and filter

Oil sample

12,000 mile Service and Inspection

Change filters: air [not on large capacity}, fuel water, tranny [external only], smog/emissions

Clean battery box of area

Check camera systems, date and time, and clean lens

Pressure test the radiator cap

Inspect and clean heater cores and heater filters

Propane Vehicles

Check fuel pump wave pattern

Check fuel pump pressure

25,000 mile Service and Inspection

Power steering filters

Transmission: change Trans oil and external filter

Test antifreeze

Differential: sample the fluid

Transmission: change the modulator valve

Change large capacity air filter

Re-torque body clamps

DPF Cleaning

Remove inspect and clean particulate filter



VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AND SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

2014-2015 Vehicle Lease Agreement Page 12

Visual, pulse, thermal regeneration, inches of water reading

Reset the computer

50,000 mile Service and Inspection

Adjust valves

Adjust fuel rack

Air dryer service

Annual Service and Inspection

Opacity test and report

Seats

First aid kit

Keys

Insurance

Two way radios





Local Control and Accountability Plan

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified

July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2017

04/25/2014 (revised 05/08/2014)

1



§ 15497. Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template.

Introduction:

LEA: Sierra-Plumas Joint
Unified

Contact (Name, Title, Email, Phone Number): Merrill Grant, Ed.D., Superintendent,
mgrant@spjusd.org, (530) 993-1660 #837

LCAP Year: 2 0 1 4

Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template

The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and annual update template shall be used to provide details regarding local educational agencies'
(LEAs) actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and overall performance pursuant to Education Code sections 52060, 52066, 47605,
47605.5, and 47606.5.

For school districts, pursuant to Education Code section 52060, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district,
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, including
pupils with disabilities, for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, pursuant to Education Code section 52066, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school
and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052,
including pupils with disabilities, who are funded through the county office of education Local Control Funding Formula as identified in Education Code
section 2574 (pupils attending juvenile court schools, on probation or parole, or mandatorily expelled) for each of the state priorities and any locally
identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services provided to
pupils funded by a school district but attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education programs.

Charter schools, pursuant to Education Code sections 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5, must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals
for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, including pupils with disabilities, for each of the state priorities
as applicable and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be
modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the Education Code.

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool. LEAs may reference and describe actions and expenditures in other plans and funded by a
variety of other fund sources when detailing goals, actions, and expenditures related to the state and local priorities. LCAPs must be consistent with
school plans submitted pursuant to Education Code section 64001. The information contained in the LCAP, or annual update, may be supplemented by
information contained in other plans (including the LEA plan pursuant to Section 1112 of Subpart 1 of Part A of Title I of Public Law 107-110) that are
incorporated or referenced as relevant in this document.

For each section of the template, LEAs should comply with instructions and use the guiding questions as prompts (but not limits) for completing the
information as required by statute. Guiding questions do not require separate narrative responses. Data referenced in the LCAP must be consistent
with the school accountability report card where appropriate. LEAs may resize pages or attach additional pages as necessary to facilitate completion of
the LCAP.

2



State Priorities

The state priorities listed in Education Code sections 52060 and 52066 can be categorized as specified below for planning purposes, however, school
districts and county offices of education must address each of the state priorities in their LCAP. Charter schools must address the priorities in
Education Code section 52060(d) that apply to the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by the charter school.

A. Conditions of Learning:

Basic: degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned pursuant to Education Code section 44258.9, and fully credentialed in the subject areas
and for the pupils they are teaching; pupils have access to standards-aligned instructional materials pursuant to Education Code section 60119; and
school facilities are maintained in good repair pursuant to Education Code section 17002(d). (Priority 1)

Implementation of State Standards: implementation of academic content and performance standards adopted by the state board for all pupils,
including English learners. (Priority 2)

Course access: pupil enrollment in a broad course of study that includes all of the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210 and
subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive, of Section 51220, as applicable. (Priority 7)

Expelled pupils (for county offices of education only): coordination of instruction of expelled pupils pursuant to Education Code section 48926.
(Priority 9)

Foster youth (for county offices of education only): coordination of services, including working with the county child welfare agency to share
information, responding to the needs of the juvenile court system, and ensuring transfer of health and education records. (Priority 10)

B. Pupil Outcomes:

Pupil achievement: performance on standardized tests, score on Academic Performance Index, share of pupils that are college and career ready,
share of English learners that become English proficient, English learner reclassification rate, share of pupils that pass Advanced Placement exams
with 3 or higher, share of pupils determined prepared for college by the Early Assessment Program. (Priority 4)

Other pupil outcomes: pupil outcomes in the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210 and subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive, of
Education Code section 51220, as applicable. (Priority 8)

C. Engagement:

Parent involvement: efforts to seek parent input in decision making, promotion of parent participation in programs for unduplicated pupils and
special need subgroups. (Priority 3)

Pupil engagement: school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, middle school dropout rates, high school dropout rates, high school
graduations rates. (Priority 5)

School climate: pupil suspension rates, pupil expulsion rates, other local measures including surveys of pupils, parents and teachers on the sense
of safety and school connectedness. (Priority 6)

3



Section 1: Stakeholder Engagement

Meaningful engagement of parents, pupils, and other stakeholders, including those representing the subgroups identified in Education Code section
52052, is critical to the LCAP and budget process. Education Code sections 52062 and 52063 specify the minimum requirements for school districts;
Education Code sections 52068 and 52069 specify the minimum requirements for county offices of education, and Education Code section 47606.5
specifies the minimum requirements for charter schools. In addition, Education Code section 48985 specifies the requirements for translation of
documents.

Instructions: Describe the process used to engage parents, pupils, and the community and how this engagement contributed to development
of the LCAP or annual update. Note that the LEA’s goals related to the state priority of parental involvement are to be described separately in
Section 2, and the related actions and expenditures are to be described in Section 3.

Guiding Questions:

Involvement Process Impact on LCAP

A review of documents written with stakeholder involvement including Single Plans
for Student Achievement from schools in our district, WASC Reports and annual
updates written for each of our secondary schools, and other documents such as our
Local Education Accountability Plan, our School Accountability Report Cards
(SARCs), our Strategic Plans, Board Goals, and the results of the last California
Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) provided input.  In addition, minutes of County-District
Advisory Committee (C-DAC) meetings and School Site Council meetings have
been reviewed for input from stakeholders that would relate to the development of
this first year's LCAP.  Consultation occurred with a Resource Specialist regarding
services to students with disabilities and related goals.  A public hearing on our
proposed LCAP was held at the May 13, 2014, Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School
Board meeting.  As this plan is developed over time, stakeholder involvement will be
calendarized and more focused on the LCAP at all levels in the district and all
communities served by Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District.

Stakeholders have spent time in each of their respective roles on various
committees, boards, and councils and have viewed much of the data that is
considered in setting goals for the LCAP.  Stakeholders have looked at test scores

The Loyalton High School Site Council met on April 28,
2014, and responded to the eight state priorities and
discussed possible local priorities not included in the
State's list.  This resulted in the inclusion of a fourth
goal to respond to local priorities related to our aging
school facilities.

A personal interview on April 16, 2014, with a Resource
Specialist employed by our County helped ensure that
goals were written to address the needs of students who
have been identified with disabilities.  Because of this
interview we specifically address the goal that all
students, including those with disabilities, are placed in
the least restrictive learning environment and the most
broad course of study available to them while still
meeting their learning needs.  Because of this input,
actions related to career technical education and the
possible expansion of career pathways have been

How have parents, community members, pupils, local bargaining units, and other stakeholders (e.g., LEA personnel, county child welfare
agencies, county office of education foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, foster youth, foster parents,
education rights holders and other foster youth stakeholders, English learner parents, community organizations representing English
learners, and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP?

1)

How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement in the development of the LCAP?2)
What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders related to the state priorities and
used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process?

3)

What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other feedback received by the LEA
through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

4)

What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant to Education Code sections
5 2 0 6 2, 5 2 0 6 8, and 47606.5, including engagement with representative parents of pupils identified in Education Code section
42238.01?

5)

In the annual update, how has the involvement of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils related to the state
priorities?

6)

4



on standardized tests, data reported on the SARCs, and data in WASC reports,
where data is a key consideration as evidence of learning.  For the first LCAP year,
stakeholders have been made aware through a variety of avenues of the data and
metrics surrounding our schools.

Because the state priorities are new to all of us, stakeholders are learning along with
us.  Priority goals from the various reports mentioned above that were written with
extensive stakeholder involvement have been incorporated into this plan. 

We have broad stakeholder representation on all of our Site Councils and WASC
Committees, as well as our County-District Advisory Committee.  Students of
parents who have been identified to have special needs meet at least annually for
their child's Independent Educational Program (IEP) meetings.   At these meetings,
parent input is always requested and noted.  Also, representatives of these
populations are requested to participate in our organized councils and committees. 
We do not have large enough special population groups to require the formation of
special groups including an English Learner Advisory Council, but we seek input at
all times from members of special populations.  English Learners and their parents
participate widely in our schools.  Because of our socio-economic population, we run
school-wide Title I programs that include all students and residually all parents.

We are small enough that we seek and highly value input from all parents, students,
staff, and other stakeholders.  We recognize the value of each stakeholder in making
our schools the center and showcase of our rural communities.

included in this LCAP.

Sierra Schools Foundation, a local foundation that
promotes our County/District schools, is driving the
expanded use of our greenhouses that has resulted in
increased hours for our Career Specialist and budgeting
for supplies and materials needed for this program. 
Sierra Schools Foundation also recommended at their
meetings that we continue our support of VAPA and
technology in all our schools.

Every annual update after this first year will receive
planned, direct, focused input from all stakeholders who
will be encouraged to participate in our calendar of
stakeholder events.  Stakeholders will receive
meaningful data and be provided with multiple means of
communicating with District personnel who prepare the
annual revisions and updates.

5



Section 2: Goals and Progress Indicators

For school districts, Education Code sections 52060 and 52061, for county offices of education, Education Code sections 52066 and 52067, and for
charter schools, Education Code section 47606.5 require(s) the LCAP to include a description of the annual goals, for all pupils and each subgroup of
pupils, for each state priority and any local priorities and require the annual update to include a review of progress towards the goals and describe
any changes to the goals.

Instructions: Describe annual goals and expected and actual progress toward meeting goals. This section must include specifics projected for
the applicable term of the LCAP, and in each annual update year, a review of progress made in the past fiscal year based on an identified
metric. Charter schools may adjust the chart below to align with the term of the charter school's budget that is submitted to the school's
authorizer pursuant to Education Code section 47604.33. The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, although LEAs must, at minimum,
use the specific metrics that statute explicitly references as required elements for measuring progress within a particular state priority area.
Goals must address each of the state priorities and any additional local priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. The LEA
may identify which school sites and subgroups have the same goals, and group and describe those goals together. The LEA may also indicate
those goals that are not applicable to a specific subgroup or school site. The goals must reflect outcomes for all pupils and include specific
goals for school sites and specific subgroups, including pupils with disabilities, both at the LEA level and, where applicable, at the school site
level. To facilitate alignment between the LCAP and school plans, the LCAP shall identify and incorporate school-specific goals related to the
state and local priorities from the school plans submitted pursuant to Education Code section 6 4 0 0 1. Furthermore, the LCAP should be
shared with, and input requested from, school site-level advisory groups (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, pupil
advisory groups, etc.) to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or reference
actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet the goal.

Guiding Questions:

What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to "Conditions of Learning"?1)
What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to "Pupil Outcomes"?2)
What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to "Engagement"(e.g., pupil and parent)?3)
What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address locally-identified priorities?4)
How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the development of meaningful district and/or individual
school site goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth
school level data analysis, etc.)?

5)

What are the unique goals for subgroups as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and 5 2 0 5 2 that are different from the LEA’s
goals for all pupils?

6)

What are the specific predicted outcomes/metrics/noticeable changes associated with each of the goals annually and over the term of the
L C A P ?

7)

What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop goals to address each state or
local priority and/or to review progress toward goals in the annual update?

8)

What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?9)
What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code section 5 2 0 5 2?1 0)
In the annual update, what changes/progress have been realized and how do these compare to changes/progress predicted? What
modifications are being made to the LCAP as a result of this comparison?

1 1)

6



Identified Need
and Metric (What
needs have been

identified and
what metrics are
used to measure

progress?)

Goals

Annual
Update:
Analysis

of
Progress

What will be different/improved for students?
(based on idenfitied metric)

Related State
and Local
PrioritiesDescription of

Goal

Applicable
Pupil

Subgroup(s)
(Identify
applicable
subgroups

(as defined
in EC 52052)
or indicate
"all" for all

pupils.)

School(s)
Affected

(Indicate "all"
if the goal

applies to all
schools in the

LEA, or
alternatively,

all high
schools, for
example.)

LCAP YEAR
Year 1:
2014-15

Year 2:
2015-16

Year 3:
2016-17

All teachers are
appropriately
assigned and fully
credentialed for
any core subject
they are teaching
and are qualified
to have English
Learners in their
classrooms.

All students have
access to
standards-aligned
instructional
materials, and all
courses are
aligned to state
standards and
have been
reviewed annually,
updated as
needed, and
adopted by the
local governing
board.

All students have
a broad course of
study available to
them, are placed
in the least
restrictive
learning
environment, and
have multiple
pathways to meet

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

A l l A l l   80% of
teachers are
fully
credentialed for
any core
subject they
are teaching
and have
certification to
teach English
Learners.

20% of courses
have adopted
instructional
materials,
textbooks, and
course outlines
to meet the
California
Common Core
State
Standards.

100% of K-8
students are
placed in broad
courses of
study.

90% of 9-12
students are
making
adequate
progress
towards
graduation.

90% of
teachers are
fully
credentialed for
any core
subject they
are teaching
and have
certification to
teach English
Learners.

40% of courses
have adopted
instructional
materials,
textbooks, and
course outlines
to meet the
California
Common Core
State
Standards.

100% of K-8
students are
placed in broad
courses of
study.

90% of 9-12
students are
making
adequate
progress
towards
graduation.

100% of
teachers are
fully
credentialed for
any core
subject they
are teaching
and have
certification to
teach English
Learners.

60% of courses
have adopted
instructional
materials,
textbooks, and
course outlines
to meet the
California
Common Core
State
Standards.

100% of K-8
students are
placed in broad
courses of
study.

90% of 9-12
students are
making
adequate
progress
towards
graduation.

Basic;
Implementation
of State
Standards;
Course access

7



their academic
needs.

All schools
embrace the value
of extra- and
co-curricular
activities that
provide for further
intellectual,
social, emotional,
and physical
development of
students.

Percent of
teachers who are
fully credentialed
for any core
subject they are
teaching and who
have certification
to teach English
Learners.

Percent of
courses with
adopted
instructional
materials,
textbooks, and
course outlines to
meet the
California
Common Core
State Standards.

Percent of K-8
students placed in
broad courses of
study.

Percent of 9-12
students who are
making adequate
progress towards
graduation.

Percent of
students who
participate in at
least one extra-

60% or more
students in
grades 9-12
participate in at
least one extra-
or co-curricular
activity during
the academic
year.

50% of 7-12
schools in the
district hold an
annual School
Science Fair.

20% of
graduates
complete a
Career
Technical
Pathway prior
to graduation.

65% or more
students in
grades 9-12
participate in at
least one extra-
or co-curricular
activity during
the academic
year.

75% of 7-12
schools in the
district hold an
annual School
Science Fair.

25% of
graduates
complete a
Career
Technical
Pathway prior
to graduation.

70% or more
students in
grades 9-12
participate in at
least one extra-
or co-curricular
activity during
the academic
year.

100% of 7-12
schools in the
district hold an
annual School
Science Fair.

30% of
graduates
complete a
Career
Technical
Pathway prior
to graduation.

8



or co-curricular
activity during an
academic year.

Percent of 7-12
schools in the
district that hold
an annual School
Science Fair.

Percent of
graduates who
complete a Career
Technical
Pathway prior to
graduation.

A l l
administrators,
teachers, and
staff recognize
their participation
in student
success,
understand the
power of
collaboration, and
value professional
development.

All students
participate in
universal
screening and
local benchmark
assessment;
students who
need intensive
intervention in
ELA or
mathematics are
provided
instruction using
adopted
intervention
programs.

All students are
provided multiple
pathways to
achieve academic
success including

All students
engage in a
rigorous
curriculum and
acquire the
knowledge,
critical thinking
skills, and
characteristics
needed for
success in
college, career,
and life.

A l l A l l   School calendar
that has
minimum days
designated for
professional
collaboration.

80% of school
staff submit a
professional
development
plan to their
site
administrator
on or before
September 30.

50% of schools
meet their AYP.

100% of
schools
administer local
benchmark
testing in core
subject areas
at least three
times during
the year.

80% of
students in
intensive
intervention
programs
achieve grade

School calendar
that has
minimum days
designated for
professional
collaboration.

90% of school
staff submit a
professional
development
plan to their
site
administrator
on or before
September 30.

75% of schools
meet their AYP.

100% of
eligible
students
participate in
the California
Assessment of
Student
Performance
and Progress
(CAASPP)
testing.

90% of
students in
intensive
intervention

School calendar
that has
minimum days
designated for
professional
collaboration.

100% of school
staff submit a
professional
development
plan to their
site
administrator
on or before
September 30.

100% of
schools meet
their AYP.

60% of
students
participate in
the CAASPP
and score
proficient or
advanced in
ELA or
Mathematics.

95% of
students in
intensive
intervention
programs

Pupil
achievement;
Other pupil
outcomes;
Pupil
engagement

9



independent
study, alternative
education, college
readiness, and
career technical
pathways.

All students in
Grades 3-12 have
opportunities to
participate in
extra- and
co-curricular
activities.

School calendar
that allows staff
time for
professional
collaboration.

Percent of school
staff who submit a
profesionnal
development plan
to their site
administrator on
or before
September 30 of
each year.

Percent of
schools meeting
their AYP.

Percent of
schools
administering
local benchmark
testing in core
subject areas at
least three times
a year. (Year 1
only)

Percent of
students
participating in
the CAASPP. 
(Year 2 only)

Percent of

level within two
years of
entering the
intervention
program.

35% of
graduates meet
the a-g
entrance
requirements.

25% of
students who
take the
Advanced
Placement
exams score a
3 or higher.

40% of
sophomores
score proficient
or advanced on
the CAHSEE.

25% of juniors
are recognized
as "college
ready" or
"conditionally
college ready"
on the EAP
exams in ELA
or
Mathematics.

80% of 9-12
class cohort
graduate from
high school.

80% of
students in
attendance
daily, averaged.

Fewer than
10% of
students are
suspended in
the year.

programs
achieve grade
level within two
years of
entering the
intervention
program.

40% of
graduates meet
the a-g
entrance
requirements.

30% of
students who
take the
Advanced
Placement
exams score a
3 or higher.

50% of
sophomores
score proficient
or advanced on
the CAHSEE.

30% of juniors
are recognized
as "college
ready" or
"conditionally
college ready"
on the EAP
exams in ELA
or
Mathematics.

90% of 9-12
class cohort
graduate from
high school.

85% of
students in
attendance
daily, averaged.

Fewer than
7.5% of
students are
suspended in

achieve grade
level within two
years of
entering the
intervention
program.

45% of
graduates meet
the a-g
entrance
requirements.

35% of
students who
take the
Advanced
Placement
exams score a
3 or higher.

55% of
sophomores
score proficient
or advanced on
the CAHSEE.

35% of juniors
are recognized
as "college
ready" or
"conditionally
college ready"
on the EAP
exams in ELA
or
Mathematics.

95% of 9-12
class cohort
graduate from
high school.

90% of
students in
attendance
daily, averaged.

Fewer than 5%
of students are
suspended in
the year.

10



students scoring
proficient or
advanced on the
CAASPP.  (Year 3
only)

Percent of
students in
intensive
intervention
programs who
achieve grade
level within two
years of entering
the intervention
program.

Percent of
graduates who
meet the a-g
entrance
requirements.

Percent of
students who take
the Advanced
Placement exams
who score a 3 or
higher.

Percent of
sophomores who
score proficient or
advanced on the
CAHSEE.

Percent of juniors
who are
recognized as
"college ready" or
"conditionally
college ready" on
the EAP exams in
ELA or
Mathematics.

Percent of 9-12
class cohort who
graduate from
high school.

Percent of
students in

Fewer than 1%
of students are
expelled in the
year.

55% of our
students who
participate in
California's
Physical
Fitness Test
test within the
Healthy Fitness
Zone.

90% of K-8
students
demonstrate
mastery of the
academic skills
needed for
promotion to
the next grade
level at the end
of the year.

90% of English
Learners are
reclassified
Fluent English
Proficient within
five years of
initial
enrollment.

90% of
graduates who
are Ag
Completers
receive their
State FFA
Degree.

25% of
graduates have
completed a
Career
Technical
pathway.

60% of
students

the year.

Fewer than 1%
of students are
expelled in the
year.

60% of our
students who
participate in
California's
Physical
Fitness Test
test within the
Healthy Fitness
Zone.

95% of K-8
students
demonstrate
mastery of the
academic skills
needed for
promotion to
the next grade
level at the end
of the year.

90% of English
Learners are
reclassified
Fluent English
Proficient within
four years of
initial
enrollment.

95% of
graduates who
are Ag
Completers
receive their
State FFA
Degree.

30% of
graduates have
completed a
Career
Technical
pathway.

70% of

Fewer than 1%
of students are
expelled in the
year.

65% of our
students who
participate in
California's
Physical
Fitness Test
test within the
Healthy Fitness
Zone.

97.5% of K-8
students
demonstrate
mastery of the
academic skills
needed for
promotion to
the next grade
level at the end
of the year.

90% of English
Learners are
reclassified
Fluent English
Proficient within
three years of
initial
enrollment.

100% of
graduates who
are Ag
Completers
receive their
State FFA
Degree.

30% of
graduates have
completed a
Career
Technical
pathway.

70% of
students

11



attendance daily,
averaged.

Percent of
students who are
suspended in the
year.

Percent of
students who are
expelled in the
year.

Percent of our
students who
participate in
California's
Physical Fitness
Test who test
within the Healthy
Fitness Zone.

Percent of K-8
students who
demonstrate
mastery of the
academic skills
needed for
pormotion to the
next grade level
at the end of the
year.

Percent of English
Learners who are
reclassified Fluent
English Proficient
within five years
of initial
enrollment.

Percent of
graduates who are
Ag Completers
and receive their
State FFA Degree.

Percent of
graduates who
have completed a
Career Technical
pathway.

participate in at
least one extra-
or co-curricular
activity.

students
participate in at
least one extra-
or co-curricular
activity.

participate in at
least one extra-
or co-curricular
activity.

12



Percent of 9-12
students who
participate in at
least one extra-
or co-curricular
activity.

There is broad
stakeholder
representation on
the County-
District Advisory
Committee
(C-DAC). 
Members of the
C-DAC are
actively involved
in school
improvement and
promotion, the
public is invited to
al l  C-DAC
meetings, and the
calendar of
C-DAC meetings
is published to
encourage broad
stakeholder
involvement.

Sierra-Plumas
Joint Unified
School District
(SPJUSD) Board
Meetings are
regularly
scheduled and
offered via remote
transmission to
each school
community to
provide for broad
stakeholder
participation.

Individualized
Education
Program (IEP)
meetings are
scheduled in
advance to

All stakeholders
are engaged in
promoting a
district culture
where student
success is
realized,
communicated,
and celebrated.

A l l A l l   50% of
subgroups
represented on
the County-
District
Advisory
Committee
(C-DAC)
membership.

Four C-DAC
meetings and
monthly
SPJUSD Board
of Trustees
meetings are
clearly
indicated on the
SPJUSD
calendar posted
on the Sierra
County Office
of Education
website.

25% of parents
return the
annual School
Climate Survey.

70% of
students return
the annual
School Climate
Survey.

3 0
stakeholders
participate in
the annual
LCAP  Read,
Review, and
Recommend
Community

75% of
subgroups
represented on
the County-
District
Advisory
Committee
(C-DAC)
membership.

Four C-DAC
meetings and
monthly
SPJUSD Board
of Trustees
meetings are
clearly
indicated on the
SPJUSD
calendar posted
on the Sierra
County Office
of Education
website.

50% of parents
return the
annual School
Climate Survey.

80% of
students return
the annual
School Climate
Survey.

5 0
stakeholders
participate in
the annual
LCAP  Read,
Review, and
Recommend
Community

100% of
subgroups
represented on
the County-
District
Advisory
Committee
(C-DAC)
membership.

Four C-DAC
meetings and
monthly
SPJUSD Board
of Trustees
meetings are
clearly
indicated on the
SPJUSD
calendar posted
on the Sierra
County Office
of Education
website.

65% of parents
return the
annual School
Climate Survey.

90% of
students return
the annual
School Climate
Survey.

7 5
stakeholders
participate in
the annual
LCAP  Read,
Review, and
Recommend
Community

Parent
involvement;
Pupil
engagement;
School climate

13



provide for
inclusion of
administrators,
teachers, parents,
students, and
other advocates.

Parent and
student surveys
are administered
as a means of
receiving
stakeholder input
on SPJUSD
programs and
services from
representatives of
all student groups
and subgroups.

Percent of
subgroups
represented on
the County-
District Advisory
Committee
(C-DAC).

Posting on the
Sierra County
Office of
Education (SCOE)
website of the
SPJUSD Calendar
of four C-DAC
meetings, two
Read, Review, and
Recommend
Community
Forums, and
monthly SPJUSD
Board of Trustees
meetings.

Percent of parents
returning the
annual School
Climate Survey.

Percent of
students Grades

Forums. Forums. Forum.

14



2-12 returning
the annual School
Climate Survey.

Number of
stakeholders
participating in
the two annual
LCAP  Read,
Review, and
Recommend
Community
Forums.

Students and
parents report
that students feel
emotionally and
physically safe at
school.

Maintenance and
custodial staff are
maintained at a
sufficient level to
provide for clean
and safe facilities
and are organized
to optimize facility
and grounds
upkeep.

Classrooms are
attractive and
provide adequate
storage,
furnishings, and
technology to
support student
learning.

Percent of
students who feel
"very safe" at
school based on
data from the
latest
administration of
the California
Healthy Kids
Survey (CHKS).

All schools and
facilities are
accessible,
safe, and
healthy places
for students,
staff, and
community; and
all classrooms
are designed
and furnished
for optimal
learning.

A l l A l l   50% of
students feel
"very safe" at
school based
on data from
the latest
administration
of the California
Healthy Kids
Survey (CHKS).

5% or fewer
students have
been
suspended or
expelled
because of a
physically
violent act.

50% of parents
and students
return School
Climate
Surveys with
overall positive
responses.

75% of schools
scored Good or
Exemplary on
the annual
Facilities
Inspection Tool
(FIT).

Evidence
indicates there

60% of
students feel
"very safe" at
school based
on data from
the latest
administration
of the California
Healthy Kids
Survey (CHKS).

4% or fewer
students have
been
suspended or
expelled
because of a
physically
violent act.

60% of parents
and students
return School
Climate
Surveys with
overall positive
responses.

100% of
schools scored
Good or
Exemplary on
the annual
Facilities
Inspection Tool
(FIT).

Evidence

70% of
students feel
"very safe" at
school based
on data from
the latest
administration
of the California
Healthy Kids
Survey (CHKS).

3% or fewer
students have
been
suspended or
expelled
because of a
physically
violent act.

70% of parents
and students
return School
Climate
Surveys with
overall positive
responses.

100% of
schools scored
Good or
Exemplary on
the annual
Facilities
Inspection Tool
(FIT).

Evidence

Pupil
achievement;
Pupil
engagement;
School climate
Clean, safe
facilities.

15



Percent of
students who
have been
suspended or
expelled because
of a physically
violent act.

Percent of parents
and students with
positive
responses on
School Climate
Surveys.

Percent of
schools scoring
Good or
Exemplary on the
annual Facilities
Inspection Tool
(FIT).

Evidence in
district budget of
savings for facility
contingencies.

Evidence in
district budget of
funding for
replacement of
classroom
furniture, fixtures,
and technology.

is a plan in the
district budget
for facility
contingencies.

Evidence
indicates there
is funding in the
district budget
for classroom
furniture,
fixtures, and
technology.

indicates there
is a plan in the
district budget
for facility
contingencies.

Evidence
indicates there
is funding in the
district budget
for classroom
furniture,
fixtures, and
technology.

indicates there
is a plan in the
district budget
for facility
contingencies.

Evidence
indicates there
is funding in the
district budget
for classroom
furniture,
fixtures, and
technology.

16



Section 3: Actions, Services, and Expenditures

For school districts, Education Code sections 52060 and 52061, for county offices of education, Education Code sections 52066 and 52067, and for
charter schools, Education Code section 47606.5 require the LCAP to include a description of the specific actions an LEA will take to meet the goals
identified. Additionally Education Code section 52064 requires a listing and description of the expenditures required to implement the specific actions.

Instructions: Identify annual actions to be performed to meet the goals described in Section 2, and describe expenditures to implement each
action, and where these expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. Actions may describe a group of services that are implemented to
achieve identified goals. The actions and expenditures must reflect details within a goal for the specific subgroups identified in Education Code
section 5 2 0 5 2, including pupils with disabilities, and for specific school sites as applicable. In describing the actions and expenditures that
will serve low-income, English learner, and/or foster youth pupils as defined in Education Code section 42238.01, the LEA must identify
whether supplemental and concentration funds are used in a districtwide, schoolwide, countywide, or charterwide manner. In the annual update,
the LEA must describe any changes to actions as a result of a review of progress. The LEA must reference all fund sources used to support
actions and services. Expenditures must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections
5 2 0 6 1, 5 2 0 6 7, and 47606.5.

Guiding Questions:

What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to Education Code section 5 2 0 5 2, to
specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

1)

How do these actions/services link to identified goals and performance indicators?2)
What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified? Where can these expenditures be found in the
LEA's budget?

3)

In the annual update, how have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those services result in
the desired outcomes?

4)

In the annual update, how have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to Education Code
section 5 2 0 5 2, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those
actions/services result in the desired outcomes?

5)

In the annual update, how have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school sites and did the
provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes?

6)

In the annual update, what changes in actions, services, and expenditures have been made as a result of reviewing past progress and/or
changes to goals?

7)

17



A. What annual actions, and the LEA may include any services that support these actions, are to be performed to meet the goals described in
Section 2 for ALL pupils and the goals specifically for subgroups of pupils identified in Education Code section 5 2 0 5 2 but not listed in Table
3B below (e.g., Ethnic subgroups and pupils with disabilities)? List and describe expenditures for each fiscal year implementing these actions,
including where these expenditures can be found in the LEA's budget.

Goal

Related State and
Local Priorities

(Identify specific
state priority. For

districts and
COEs, all priorities

in statute must
be included and
identified; each

goal may be
linked to more

than one priority
if appropriate.)

Actions and
Services

Level of
Service

Annual
Update:
Review

of
actions/
services

What actions are performed or services provided in each year
(and are projected to be provided in years 2 and 3)? What are

the anticipated expenditures for each action (including
funding source)?

LCAP Year
Year 1:
2014-15

Year 2:
2015-16

Year 3:
2016-17

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Development of a
five-year
textbook adoption
plan proposed by
Sierra-Plumas
Teachers'
Association and
approved by the
SPJUSD Board.

LEA-Wide   Stipend: $2,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

   

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Purchase of
textbooks and
instructional
materials and
development of
updated course
outlines to align
with CCCSS in
accordance with
the five-year
adoption plan.

LEA-Wide   Purchase textbooks
and instructional
materials: $86,000
Funding Source:
NonProp Lottery,
Common Core
Funds, and
Unrestricted
General Funds

Purchase textbooks
and instructional
materials: $35,000
Funding Source:
NonProp Lottery,
Common Core
Funds, and
Unrestricted
General Funds

Purchase textbooks
and instructional
materials: $35,000
Funding Source:
NonProp Lottery,
Common Core
Funds, and
Unrestricted
General Funds

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Fund a Title I
Teacher to
provide services
to all students at
Loyalton
Elementary
School who need
support in core
academic areas.

School-Wide   .3 FTE Credentialed
Teacher Salary and
Benefits: $15,000
Funding Source:
Ttile I
Note:
Additional FTE
time - see
supplemental

.3 FTE Credentialed
Teacher Salary and
Benefits: $15,000
Funding Source:
Ttile I
Note:
Additional FTE
time - see
supplemental

.3 FTE Credentialed
Teacher Salary and
Benefits: $15,000
Funding Source:
Ttile I
Note:
Additional FTE
time - see
supplemental

18



development. section for funding. section for funding. section for funding.

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Fund Title I
Instructional
Aide positions at
each school site
in the district to
provide support
for students in
core academic
subjects.

LEA-Wide   Classified Salary
and Benefits:
$40,000
Funding Source:
Title I

Classified Salary
and Benefits:
$40,000
Funding Source:
Title I

Classified Salary
and Benefits:
$40,000
Funding Source:
Title I

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Fund English
Language
Learners Aides to
provide support in
core academic
subjects and
language
acquisition.

LEA-Wide   Classified Salary
and Benefits:
$25,000
Funding Source:
English Learners
Note:
Years 2 & 3 will be
funded with
supplement funds.

   

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Provide Career
Technical
Education
courses for
students in
grades 7-11 and
fund extended
summer contract
for Agriculture
teacher.

School-Wide   Credentialed
Teacher, Material &
Supplies: $55,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Agriculture
Program

Credentialed
Teacher, Material &
Supplies: $57,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Agriculture
Program

Credentialed
Teacher, Material &
Supplies: $60,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Agriculture
Program

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Support co- and
extra-curricular
activities.

LEA-Wide   Transportation,
Substitutes,
Stipends, Per Diem:
$72,000
Funding Source:
Non-prop Lottery
and Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Athletics and
Class/Club Field
Trips

Transportation,
Substitutes,
Stipends, Per Diem:
$73,000
Funding Source:
Non-prop Lottery
and Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Athletics and
Class/Club Field
Trips

Transportation,
Substitutes,
Stipends, Per Diem:
$74,000
Funding Source:
Non-prop Lottery
and Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Athletics and
Class/Club Field
Trips

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Fund a partial
full-time-
equivalent
teacher for Visual
and Performing

School-Wide   Salary and Benefits:
$30,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

Salary and Benefits:
$30,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

Salary and Benefits:
$30,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

19



intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Arts (VAPA)
instruction in
grades 7-12.

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Fund Art
Specialist to work
in grades K-6 at
Loyalton
Elementary
School.

School-Wide   Salary and Benefits,
Materials and
Supplies: $15,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

Salary and Benefits,
Materials and
Supplies: $15,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

Salary and Benefits,
Materials and
Supplies: $15,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Consider hiring a
credentialed PE
instructor to
serve all
students.

LEA-Wide        

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Fund instructors,
course materials,
and supplies for
Sierra Pass
Continuation High
School and an
on-line
Independent
Study Program.

LEA-Wide   Instructor,
Instructional Aide,
Course Materials,
On-Line Vendor:
$145,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
K-12 ISP, Sierra
Pass Continuation

Instructor,
Instructional Aide,
Course Materials,
On-Line Vendor:
$145,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
K-12 ISP, Sierra
Pass Continuation

Instructor,
Instructional Aide,
Course Materials,
On-Line Vendor:
$146,500
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
K-12 ISP, Sierra
Pass Continuation

All students
receive
instruction and
services to
support their
intellectual,
social,
emotional, and
physical
development.

Basic;
Implementation of
State Standards;
Course access

Fund a
Curriculum
Coordinator to
oversee
development of
updated course
outlines and
adoption of
textbooks and
instructional
materials to align
courses with
CCCSS.

LEA-Wide        

20



All students
engage in a
rigorous
curriculum and
acquire the
knowledge,
critical thinking
skills, and
characteristics
needed for
success in
college, career,
and life.

Pupil
achievement;
Other pupil
outcomes; Pupil
engagement

Fund professional
development
activities for local
program, NCLB
compliance
requirements,
travel and
conference to
remote
professional
development
locations.

LEA-Wide   Substitutes,
Conferences, Per
Diem, Exams,
Certificated Extra
Days Salary &
Benefits: $30,600
Funding Source:
Federal Funds

Substitutes,
Conferences, Per
Diem, Exams,
Certificated Extra
Days Salary &
Benefits: $9,900
Funding Source:
Federal Funds

Substitutes,
Conferences, Per
Diem, Exams,
Certificated Extra
Days Salary &
Benefits: $9,300
Funding Source:
Federal Funds

All students
engage in a
rigorous
curriculum and
acquire the
knowledge,
critical thinking
skills, and
characteristics
needed for
success in
college, career,
and life.

Pupil
achievement;
Other pupil
outcomes; Pupil
engagement

Fund the
development and
scoring of a
district wide
writing
assessment to be
administered at
least three times
a year.

LEA-Wide   Benchmark Testing
Software Programs:
$10,000
Funding Source:
Federal Funds
Note:
Currently using
S T A R
Reading/STAR
Math and Report
Writer software.

Benchmark Testing
Software Programs:
$10,000
Funding Source:
Federal Funds
Note:
Currently using
S T A R
Reading/STAR
Math and Report
Writer software.

Benchmark Testing
Software Programs:
$10,000
Funding Source:
Federal Funds
Note:
Currently using
S T A R
Reading/STAR
Math and Report
Writer software.

All students
engage in a
rigorous
curriculum and
acquire the
knowledge,
critical thinking
skills, and
characteristics
needed for
success in
college, career,
and life.

Pupil
achievement;
Other pupil
outcomes; Pupil
engagement

Provide sections
for remedial and
enrichment
courses in the
high schools
(7-12) class
schedule.

School-Wide   Certificated Salary
and Benefits, Class
Materials and
Supplies: $175,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Advanced
Placement (AP,
CAHSEE Prep,
remedial core
subjects, and a
reading flex period,
approximately 2
FTE at LHS &
DJrSrH

Certificated Salary
and Benefits, Class
Materials and
Supplies: $175,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Advanced
Placement (AP,
CAHSEE Prep,
remedial core
subjects, and a
reading flex period,
approximately 2
FTE at LHS &
DJrSrH

Certificated Salary
and Benefits, Class
Materials and
Supplies: $175,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Advanced
Placement (AP,
CAHSEE Prep,
remedial core
subjects, and a
reading flex period,
approximately 2
FTE at LHS &
DJrSrH

All students
engage in a
rigorous
curriculum and
acquire the
knowledge,

Pupil
achievement;
Other pupil
outcomes; Pupil
engagement

Fund testing
programs for core
subject areas and
physical
education.

LEA-Wide        

21



critical thinking
skills, and
characteristics
needed for
success in
college, career,
and life.

All students
engage in a
rigorous
curriculum and
acquire the
knowledge,
critical thinking
skills, and
characteristics
needed for
success in
college, career,
and life.

Pupil
achievement;
Other pupil
outcomes; Pupil
engagement

Fund an
Academic
Adviser for 9-12
students to
assist them in
meeting
academic needs
according to their
future plans.

School-Wide   Credentialed
Salaries and
Benefits: $14,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

Credentialed
Salaries and
Benefits: $14,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

Credentialed
Salaries and
Benefits: $14,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds

All stakeholders
are engaged in
promoting a
district culture
where student
success is
realized,
communicated,
and celebrated.

Parent
involvement;
Pupil
engagement;
School climate

Administer
student/parent
school climate
and other parent
engagement
surveys.
Publicize results.
Schedule
community forum
meetings to
discuss outcome
of surveys and to
prioritize and
gather input for
future LCAPs.
Explore ways to
retain C-DAC
members.

LEA-Wide   Consultant,
materials,
advertisment: $750
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Expenses to be
shared with Sierra
C O E

Consultant,
materials,
advertisment: $750
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Expenses to be
shared with Sierra
C O E

Consultant,
materials,
advertisment: $750
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
Expenses to be
shared with Sierra
C O E

All schools and
facilities are
accessible, safe,
and healthy
places for
students, staff,
and community;
and all
classrooms are
designed and
furnished for

Pupil
achievement;
Pupil
engagement;
School climate
Clean, safe
facilities.

Fund and provide
training for
maintenance and
custodial staff
necessary to care
for school
buildings,
grounds, and
classrooms that
will provide a safe
environment for

LEA-Wide   Maintenance and
Custodial Salary
and Benefits,
training, supplies,
repairs: $687,647
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
All costs
associated with

Maintenance and
Custodial Salary
and Benefits,
training, supplies,
repairs: $704,325
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
All costs
associated with

Maintenance and
Custodial Salary
and Benefits,
training, supplies,
repairs: $712,337
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds
Note:
All costs
associated with

22



optimal learning. students and
staff.

maintaining
schools.

maintaining
schools.

maintaining
schools.

All schools and
facilities are
accessible, safe,
and healthy
places for
students, staff,
and community;
and all
classrooms are
designed and
furnished for
optimal learning.

Pupil
achievement;
Pupil
engagement;
School climate
Clean, safe
facilities.

Fund training for
students and staff
in programs that
promote school
climate and
student safety.

LEA-Wide        

All schools and
facilities are
accessible, safe,
and healthy
places for
students, staff,
and community;
and all
classrooms are
designed and
furnished for
optimal learning.

Pupil
achievement;
Pupil
engagement;
School climate
Clean, safe
facilities.

Develop a three-
to five-year
facility plan to
address major
repairs and
maintenance
projects.

LEA-Wide   Facility Capital
Outlay: $350,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds to
Fund 40 and Prop
39 for energy
efficient projects
Note:
Year 1 (2014-15):
Resurface/Repair
LHS parking lot,
including water
drainage. Exterior
painting of
Downieville school.
Energy efficient
projects to be
determined. Years
2 & 3: projects to
be determined.

Facility Capital
Outlay: $105,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds to
Fund 40 and Prop
39 for energy
efficient projects
Note:
Year 1 (2014-15):
Resurface/Repair
LHS parking lot,
including water
drainage. Exterior
painting of
Downieville school.
Energy efficient
projects to be
determined. Years
2 & 3: projects to
be determined.

Facility Capital
Outlay: $105,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds to
Fund 40 and Prop
39 for energy
efficient projects
Note:
Year 1 (2014-15):
Resurface/Repair
LHS parking lot,
including water
drainage. Exterior
painting of
Downieville school.
Energy efficient
projects to be
determined. Years
2 & 3: projects to
be determined.

All schools and
facilities are
accessible, safe,
and healthy
places for
students, staff,
and community;
and all
classrooms are
designed and
furnished for
optimal learning.

Pupil
achievement;
Pupil
engagement;
School climate
Clean, safe
facilities.

Develop a plan to
replace
classroom
furnishings and
technology on a
regular basis and
budget
accordingly.

LEA-Wide        

23



B. Identify additional annual actions, and the LEA may include any services that support these actions, above what is provided for all pupils
that will serve low-income, English learner, and/or foster youth pupils as defined in Education Code section 42238.01 and pupils redesignated
as fluent English proficient. The identified actions must include, but are not limited to, those actions that are to be performed to meet the
targeted goals described in Section 2 for low-income pupils, English learners, foster youth and/or pupils redesignated as fluent English
proficient (e.g., not listed in Table 3A above). List and describe expenditures for each fiscal year implementing these actions, including where
those expenditures can be found in the LEA's budget.

Goal
(Include and idenfity
all goals from Section

2)

Related State
and Local

Priorities (from
Section 2)

Actions and
Services

Level of
Service

(Indicate if
school-wide or

LEA-wide)

Annual
Update:

Review of
actions/
services

What actions are performed or services provided in
each year (and are projected to be provided in years 2

and 3)? What are the anticipated expenditures for
each action (including funding source)?

LCAP Year
Year 1:
2014-15

Year 2:
2015-16

Year 3:
2016-17

All students engage in
a rigorous curriculum
and acquire the
knowledge, critical
thinking skills, and
characteristics
needed for success in
college, career, and
life.

Pupil
achievement;
Other pupil
outcomes;
Pupil
engagement

Low income
pupils; Foster
youth; English
learners;
Redesignated
fluent English
proficient pupils:
Fund intensive
intervention
instruction for
students in
grades K-12 ELA
and mathematics.

County-Wide   Intervention
Teacher and
Instructional
Aides Salary &
Benefits:
$95,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds,
Supplemental
Funds,
encroachment to
Title I
Note:
Backfill Title I
for the new
intervention
teacher position,

Intervention
Teacher and
Instructional
Aides Salary &
Benefits:
$96,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds,
Supplemental
Funds,
encroachment to
Title I
Note:
Backfill Title I
for the new
intervention
teacher position,

Intervention
Teacher and
Instructional
Aides Salary &
Benefits:
$96,000
Funding Source:
Unrestricted
General Funds,
Supplemental
Funds,
encroachment to
Title I
Note:
Backfill Title I
for the new
intervention
teacher position,

24



C. Describe the LEA’s increase in funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration of low income, foster youth,
and English learner pupils as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a)(5). Describe how the LEA is expending these funds in the LCAP year.
Include a description of, and justification for, the use of any funds in a districtwide, schoolwide, countywide, or charterwide manner as specified
in 5 CCR 15496. For school districts with below 55 percent of enrollment of unduplicated pupils in the district or below 40 percent of
enrollment of unduplicated pupils at a school site in the LCAP year, when using supplemental and concentration funds in a districtwide or
schoolwide manner, the school district must additionally describe how the services provided are the most effective use of funds to meet the
district’s goals for unduplicated pupils in the state priority areas. (See 5 CCR 15496(b) for guidance.)

The LEA's unduplicated percentage for all three years is approximately 49%.   The district is funding a new intervention teacher to work with
our unduplicated student population and is continuing to fund instructional aides.

25



D. Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, demonstrate how the services provided in the LCAP year for low income pupils, foster
youth, and English learners provide for increased or improved services for these pupils in proportion to the increase in funding provided for
such pupils in that year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a)(7). Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must
be increased or improved as compared to the services provided to all pupils in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a). An
LEA shall describe how the proportionality percentage is met using a quantitative and/or qualitative description of the increased and/or
improved services for unduplicated pupils as compared to the services provided to all pupils.

Students will receive one on one or group instructional services.

Fiscal Year           Gap Funding             MMP

2014-2015:             28.05%                    2.75%

2015-2016:             33.95%                    2.33%

2016-2017              21.67%                    1.48%

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 5 2 0 6 4, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2 5 7 4, 2 5 7 5, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03,
42238.07, 4 7 6 0 5, 47605.5, 47606.5, 4 8 9 2 6, 5 2 0 5 2, 52060-52077, and 6 4 0 0 1, Education Code; 20 U.S.C. Section 6312.

26






































































































































































	1_SPJUSD_06_18_14_AGENDA.pdf
	2_SPJUSD May2014 ObjSumm.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	









	3_Board Summary Enrollments 2013-2014.pdf
	4_5-13-14 SPJUSD Minutes.pdf
	5_SPJUSD May2014 Checks.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	



	6_CIF Reps.pdf
	7_SPJUSD_ConApp.pdf
	8_2014-2015 Extra Duty Assign.pdf
	9_13-011 LYTN Intermediate School Disposition.pdf
	10_13-012 Election Resolution.pdf
	11_AD_LHS.pdf
	12_WASC_Downieville.pdf
	13 Waiver Request.pdf
	14_Superintendent Agreement July 2014_June 2017.pdf
	15_PUSD_SPJUSD_Vehicle Agree.pdf
	16_WASC_Downieville.pdf
	17_SPJUSD Proposed LCAP May 13 2103nonCDEformat.pdf
	18_SPJUSD_BUDGET.pdf

